
 

Any person who requires accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the District office at (909) 797-5117, at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting to request a disability-related modification or accommodation. 
 
Materials that are provided to the Board of Directors after the meeting packet is compiled and distributed will be made available 
for public review during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa.  Meeting materials 
are also available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us 
 

 
 

Notice and Agenda of a Board Workshop 
Tuesday, September 25, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

 

MEETING LOCATION: District Administration Building 
 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa 

 

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD: Director Chris Mann, Division 1 
Director Bruce Granlund, Division 2 
Director Jay Bogh, Division 3 
Director Lonni Granlund, Division 4 
Director Tom Shalhoub, Division 5 

 

 

I. Call to Order 

II. Public Comments  At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Directors on matters within its 

jurisdiction; however, no action or significant discussion may take place on any item not on the meeting agenda.   

III. Staff Report 

IV. Presentations 

A. Overview of the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Supply Renewal Project and the Status of 
the Calimesa Lake and Recharge Facility [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-226 - Page 5 of 
145] 

V. Administrative Items 

A. Overview of a Request for Proposals for the Inspection and Cleaning of Potable, Non-
Potable, and Recycled Water Storage Facilities [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227 - 
Page 8 of 145] 

B. Discussion Regarding and Updated Ordinance 2018-xx - Rules and Regulations for 
Recycled Water Use and Distribution [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228 - Page 46 of 
145] 

C. Review the Updated Procurement Policy for the Yucaipa Valley Water District [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 18-229 - Page 115 of 145] 

D. Discussion Regarding the Draft 2018 Imported Water Rate Analysis for the San Gorgonio 
Pass Water Agency [Workshop Memorandum No. 18-230 - Page 124 of 145] 

VI. Director Comments  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 1 of 145

http://www.yvwd.dst.ca.us/


Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop Page 2 
 
 

 

VII. Announcements 

A. October 2, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting  

B. October 9, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  

C. October 16, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting  

D. October 30, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  

E. November 6, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting  

F. November 13, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  

G. November 20, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting  

H. November 27, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  

I. December 4, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting  

J. December 11, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  

K. December 18, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting  

L. December 25, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop Canceled 

M. January 1, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting Canceled 

N. January 8, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop 

O. January 15, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting  

P. January 29, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  

VIII. Closed Session 

A. Conference with Real Property Negotiator(s) - Government Code 54956.8 
Property: Assessor’s Parcel Numbers: 413-380-001 - 009, and 013 
Agency Negotiator:  Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Negotiating Parties:  Johnson Brothers Partnership 
Under Negotiation: Terms of Payment and Price 

B. Conference with Legal Counsel--Existing Litigation - Government Code 54956.9(d) 
YVWD vs Hillcrest Mobile Home Park 
San Bernardino Superior Court Case No. CIVDS 1808441  

IX. Adjournment 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 2 of 145



 

Staff Report 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 3 of 145



 

 

Presentations 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 4 of 145



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-226 

Date: September 25, 2018 

From: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Overview of the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Supply Renewal Project and the 
Status of the Calimesa Lake and Recharge Facility 

 
Like most water agencies in the arid southwest, the 
Yucaipa Valley Water District is confronted with increased 
drinking water demands due to the increased population 
and limited local water supplies.  The Yucaipa Valley 
Water District is somewhat unique given the strict 
regulatory requirements that necessitate desalination of 
recycled water supplies to protect local groundwater 
basins pursuant to the 2004 Regional Water Quality 
Control Basin Plan for the Santa Ana Region.   
 
To address a wide range of regional issues, the District 
has developed the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Supply 
Renewal Project to accomplish the following objectives: 
 
REGIONAL BENEFITS: 

 Provides the Yucaipa Valley with a renewable 
water resource that will be a reliable water supply 
in the upper Santa Ana Watershed. 

 Protects and enhances the regional groundwater quality by exporting concentrated salt 
brine that would normally accumulate through recycled water use. 

 Reduces the critical overdraft of the Yucaipa, Beaumont, and San Timoteo basins by 
reducing the fresh water production from the local groundwater supplies.  

 Encourages economic and environmental growth of the region by balancing water 
demands. 

 
WATERSHED BENEFITS: 

 Equips the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility with advanced treatment including 
reverse osmosis to achieve an advanced, pure, and renewable water resource. 

 Protects water quality in the lower Santa Ana Watershed by maintaining high quality water 
in the upper watershed as the water of the upper basins eventually flows to the 
downstream basins. 

 Relies upon the Santa Ana Regional Interceptor (“SARI”) pipeline, originally constructed 
by the Santa Ana Watershed Authority with a 15-mile extension by the Yucaipa Valley 
Water District. 

 The Yucaipa Valley Water District is capable of achieving a zero-discharge providing the 
ultimate protection of downstream water resources consistent with the goals of the Clean 
Water Act. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 5 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-226  Page 2 of 2 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA BENEFITS: 

 Reduces the need for water to be imported from northern California that would normally 
be required to meet future water demands. 

 Desalting and treatment of brackish water will allow poor quality water to be recycled and 
used. 

 Conservation, including efficiency water use and reclamation, is consistent in protecting 
the best interest of the State of California. 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Supply Renewal Project 
 
The Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Supply Renewal Project is an innovative salinity control 
project that will effectively eliminate the buildup of minerals in the Yucaipa Valley that degrade 
drinking water supplies.  The overall project also involves expanded reverse osmosis 
infrastructure at the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility (Salinity Concentrate 
Reduction and Minimization (SCRAM) System); an expanded reverse osmosis and treatment 
infrastructure at the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility (Salinity and Groundwater 
Enhancement (SAGE) Project); and a recharge facility at the Calimesa Lake and Spreading 
Basins.  Coupled with the District’s aggressive recycled water program, these projects will 
minimize the amount of water imported from the fragile ecosystem in northern California and allow 
for the maximum use of high-purity recycled water.   
 
The purpose of this workshop item is to provide an update on the status of the Calimesa Lake 
and Spreading Basin Project. 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 6 of 145



 

 

Administrative Items 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 7 of 145



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-227 

Date: September 25, 2018 

From: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Overview of a Request for Proposals for the Inspection and Cleaning of Potable, Non-
Potable, and Recycled Water Storage Facilities 

 
The District staff has been working on the preparation of a Request for Proposals for routine cleaning 
of the drinking water, non-potable, and recycled water storage facilities.   This contract is proposed 
to provide cleaning services for a three-year period. 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 8 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 2 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 9 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 3 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 10 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 4 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 11 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 5 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 12 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 6 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 13 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 7 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 14 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 8 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 15 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 9 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 16 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 10 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 17 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 11 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 18 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 12 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 19 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 13 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 20 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 14 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 21 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 15 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 22 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 16 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 23 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 17 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 24 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 18 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 25 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 19 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 26 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 20 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 27 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 21 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 28 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 22 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 29 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 23 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 30 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 24 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 31 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 25 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 32 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 26 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 33 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 27 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 34 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 28 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 35 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 29 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 36 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 30 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 37 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 31 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 38 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 32 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 39 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 33 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 40 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 34 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 41 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 35 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 42 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 36 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 43 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 37 of 38 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 44 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-227  Page 38 of 38 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 45 of 145



 

 

 

Workshop Memorandum 18-228 

Date: September 25, 2018 

From: Kathryn Hallberg, Implementation Manager 

Subject: Discussion Regarding and Updated Ordinance 2018-xx - Rules and Regulations 
for Recycled Water Use and Distribution  

 
On July 5, 2006, the adopted Ordinance No. 52-2006 Adopting New Rules and Regulations for 
Non-Potable Water Use and Distribution, which focuses on the use of recycled water.  Rules and 
Regulations have continued to be revised since 2006, this warranted a revision to Ordinance No. 
52-2006.    
 
Ordinance No. 2018-xx will supersede Ordinance No. 52-2006 will apply to all residential and 
non-residential recycled water users.  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 46 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 2 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 2 of 65 

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-xx 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE 
YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

ADOPTING NEW RULES AND REGULATIONS 
FOR RECYCLED WATER USE AND DISTRIBUTION 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Yucaipa Valley Water District (the “District”) is a public agency of the State 
of California and organized and existing pursuant to the County Water District Law of this State 
under Section 30000 et seq. of the Water Code; and   
 
 WHEREAS, there is a need for reliable sources of water for uses not related to the 
supply of drinking water to protect investments in agriculture, greenbelts and recreation; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the environmental benefits of recycling water for recycled water uses is 
needed to maintain water quantity, quality, and to reduce salinity; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the use of such recycled water has proven to be safe from a public health 
standpoint and is mandated as a matter of statewide policy pursuant to Sections 13550 and 
13551 of the Water Code when such recycled water is available and that the use of drinking 
domestic water for recycled purposes constitutes a waste or unreasonable use of drinking water 
within the meaning of the State Constitution; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the District believes that the use of recycled water will be beneficial to the 
District’s rate payers and residents; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the use of such recycled water is a cost-effective and reliable method to 
help meet the District’s water supply needs.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley 
Water District, as follows:   
 
 1. The attached Rules and Regulations for recycled water use and distribution are 
hereby adopted by this Ordinance, are incorporated herein by this reference and made a part of 
this Ordinance.   
 
 2. Resolution 18-1994 (regarding the use of reclaimed water) and Resolution No. 
13-1998 (requiring the use of recycled water for recycled purposes) are hereby superseded by 
the attached Rules and Regulations adopted by this Ordinance.   

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 47 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 3 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 3 of 65 

 
 3. Resolution No. 08-2004 (adopting a water master plan which includes provisions 
concerning the recycled water distribution) is not hereby superseded, except that to the extent 
that there is any conflict between Resolution No. 08-2004 and the Rules and Regulations 
adopted by this Ordinance, the Rules and Regulations adopted hereby shall take precedence.   
 
 4. This Ordinance and the attached Rules and Regulations shall supersede 
Ordinance No. 52-2006 and become effectively immediately. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 48 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 4 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 4 of 65 

 ADOPTED AND ENACTED this __ day of October 2018.   
 

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
By _____________________________________ 
 JAY BOGH, President, 
 Board of Directors 

 
 
ATTESTED:  
 
 
___________________________________ 
JOSEPH B. ZOBA, Secretary of the Board 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rules and Regulations for Recycled 
Water Use and Distribution 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 49 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 5 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 5 of 65 

 
 
 
 
 
 

October __, 2018 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 50 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 2 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 2 of 65 

SECTION 1 INTRODUCTION 

 

1.1 GENERAL ................................................................................................ 8 

1.2 PURPOSE ................................................................................................ 9 

 1.3 GOALS ..................................................................................................... 9 

1.4 WATER MASTER PLAN  ....................................................................... 10 

1.5 APPLICABILITY ..................................................................................... 10 

1.6 SERVICE AREA ..................................................................................... 10 

1.7 SEVERABILITY ...................................................................................... 10 

1.8 WORDS AND PHRASES ....................................................................... 11 

1.9 INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS ........................................................... 11 

1.10 CONFLICTS ........................................................................................... 12 

  

SECTION 2 RECYCLED WATER SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 

 

2.1 GENERAL.......................................................................................................... 13 

 2.1.1 Recycled Water in Lieu of Drinking Water .............................................. 13 

 2.1.2 Authorized Uses ..................................................................................... 13 

 2.1.3 Single Family Residences ...................................................................... 14 

2.2 EXISTING WATER SERVICES ......................................................................... 14 

 2.2.1 Preliminary Determination ...................................................................... 14 

 2.2.2 Notice of Determination .......................................................................... 14 

 2.2.3 Objection and Appeals ........................................................................... 14 

2.3 DEVELOPMENT AND NEW WATER SERVICE APPROVALS .......................... 14 

 2.3.1 Conditions .............................................................................................. 14 

 2.3.2 Alteration and Remodeling ..................................................................... 15 

 2.3.3 Notice of Determination .......................................................................... 15 

 2.3.4 Requested Service ................................................................................. 15 

 2.3.5 Objection and Appeals ........................................................................... 15 

2.4 RECYCLED WATER PERMIT PROCESS ......................................................... 15 

 2.4.1 Permit Conditions ................................................................................... 15 

 2.4.2 Plan Approval ......................................................................................... 16 

 2.4.3 Permit Issuance ...................................................................................... 16 

 

2.5 APPLICATION PROCEDURE FOR RECYCLED WATER ................................. 16 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 51 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 3 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 3 of 65 

 2.5.1 Filing Application for Recycled Water Service ........................................ 16 

 2.5.2 Compliance with all Regulatory Requirements........................................ 16 

 2.5.3 Application Fees and Other Charges ...................................................... 16 

 2.5.4 Regulatory Requirements ....................................................................... 16 

 2.5.5 Review of Application by the District  ...................................................... 17 

2.6 PERMITS ........................................................................................................... 17 

 2.6.1 General .................................................................................................. 17 

 2.6.2 Residential Dual-Plumbed Homes .......................................................... 17 

2.7 ESTABLISHING SERVICE ................................................................................ 18 

 2.7.1 Request for Service Connection ............................................................. 18 

 2.7.2 Temporary Use of Drinking Water .......................................................... 18 

 2.7.3 District Not Liable for Damages through Leaking Pipes and Fixtures ...... 18 

2.8 CONDITIONS FOR RECYCLED WATER SERVICE ........................................... 18 

 2.8.1 Control and Maintenance of Facilities  .................................................... 19 

 2.8.2 Prohibition of Changes ........................................................................... 19 

 2.8.3 Subdividing an Approved Service Area .................................................. 20 

 2.8.4 Service Connection and Meter Requirements ........................................ 20 

 2.8.5 Conditions of Pressure and Service ........................................................ 21 

 2.8.6 Conditions of Hauling Recycled Water ................................................... 21 

2.9 SIZE AND LOCATION OF SERVICE CONNECTIONS ...................................... 21 

2.10 CROSS-CONNECTION PREVENTION ............................................................. 21 

 2.10.1 Purpose .................................................................................................. 21 

 2.10.2 Backflow Prevention for Drinking Water Supply ...................................... 22 

 2.10.3 Type of Protection .................................................................................. 22 

 2.10.4 Protection of the Recycled Water System ............................................... 23 

 2.10.5 Cross-Connection Control Testing .......................................................... 23 

 2.10.6 Color Coding Recycled Water Systems .................................................. 23 

2.11 ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIONS ON THE USE OF RECYCLED WATER ............ 24 

 2.11.1 Runoff, Ponding, and Overspray ............................................................ 24 

 2.11.2 Protection of Drinking Fountains and Public Facilities............................. 24 

 2.11.3 Hose Bibs and Quick Couplers ............................................................... 24 

2.12 RIGHT OF ENTRY ............................................................................................. 25 

2.13 PROTECTION OF DISTRICT PROPERTY ........................................................ 25 

 2.13.1 District Property ...................................................................................... 25 

 2.13.2 Tampering with District Property ............................................................. 25 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 52 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 4 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 4 of 65 

 2.13.3 Damage to Water System Facilities ........................................................ 25 

 2.13.4 Ground Wire Attachments ...................................................................... 26 

2.14 TURN OFF PROCEDURES ............................................................................... 26 

2.15 VIOLATIONS ..................................................................................................... 27 

 2.15.1 Public Nuisance ...................................................................................... 27 

 2.15.2 Injunction ................................................................................................ 27 

 2.15.3 Permit Revocation and Termination of Service ....................................... 27 

 2.15.4 Penalty ................................................................................................... 28 

 2.15.5 Noncompliance and Damage Costs; Indemnification .............................. 28 

 2.15.6 Appeal .................................................................................................... 28 

 2.15.7 Conversion of Facilities from Recycled Use ............................................ 28 

  

SECTION 3 FACILITIES DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION 

 

3.1 DESIGN GUIDELINES....................................................................................... 30 

3.2 OFF-SITE FACILITIES....................................................................................... 30 

 3.2.1 Application .............................................................................................. 30 

 3.2.2 Financial Arrangements .......................................................................... 31 

 3.2.3 Plans ...................................................................................................... 31 

 3.2.4 District Installation .................................................................................. 31 

 3.2.5 Owner Installation ................................................................................... 31 

 3.2.6 Length of Main Extension ....................................................................... 32 

 3.2.7 Bond Requirements ................................................................................ 32 

 3.2.8 Main Extension Reimbursement Agreement ........................................... 32 

 3.2.9 Property of District .................................................................................. 32 

 3.2.10 Easements and Rights of Way ............................................................... 32 

 3.2.11 Conversion of Existing Facilities to Recycled Water Use ........................ 33 

 3.2.12 Marking Water Facilities ......................................................................... 33 

3.3 ON-SITE FACILITIES ........................................................................................ 33 

 3.3.1 Identification of On-Site Pipes and Fittings ............................................. 34 

 3.3.2 Color Code for Recycled Water Pipes .................................................... 34 

 3.3.3 Continuous Sleeves ............................................................................... 35 

 3.3.4 Separation .............................................................................................. 35 

3.4 RECYCLED WATER FOR CONSTRUCTION USE ........................................... 36 

 3.4.1 Allowable Uses ....................................................................................... 36 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 53 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 5 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 5 of 65 

 3.4.2 Equipment .............................................................................................. 36 

3.5 SUBMITTALS .................................................................................................... 37 

3.6 INSPECTION OF WORK ................................................................................... 37 

3.7 RECORD (AS BUILT) DRAWINGS .................................................................... 37 

 

SECTION 4 FACILITIES OPERATION 

 

4.1 OFF-SITE RECYCLED WATER FACILITIES ..................................................... 38 

4.2 ON-SITE RECYCLED WATER FACILITIES ...................................................... 38 

 4.2.1 User’s Responsibilities ........................................................................... 38 

 4.2.2 Designation/Responsibility of the Recycled Water Supervisor ................ 39 

 4.2.3 Operation and Control of the On-Site Recycled Water System ............... 40 

 4.2.4 Residential Dual-Plumbed Use Sites ...................................................... 40 

4.3 WARNING SIGNS ............................................................................................. 40 

4.4 MONITORING AND INSPECTION..................................................................... 41 

4.5 METERS ............................................................................................................ 41 

 4.5.1 Meter Test .............................................................................................. 41 

 4.5.2 Non-Registering Meters .......................................................................... 42 

 4.5.3 Meter Exchange ..................................................................................... 42 

 

SECTION 5 RECYCLED WATER SERVICE RATES AND BILLINGS 

 

5.1 RATES, FEES AND CHARGES ......................................................................... 43 

 5.1.1 Temporary Service ................................................................................. 43 

 5.1.2 Service Outside of District ...................................................................... 43 

 5.1.3 Change of Rates, Fees or Charges ........................................................ 43 

5.2 CUSTOMER BILLING PROCEDURES .............................................................. 43 

 5.2.1 Rates, Fees and Charges ....................................................................... 43 

 5.2.2 Liability of Property Owner for Recycled Water Used ............................. 44 

 5.2.3 Liens for Unpaid Bills .............................................................................. 44 

 5.2.4 Billing Period .......................................................................................... 44 

 5.2.5 Meter Reading ........................................................................................ 44 

 5.2.6 Billing of Separate Meters Not Combined ............................................... 44 

 5.2.7 Opening and Closing Bills ...................................................................... 44 

 5.2.8 Payment of Bills ...................................................................................... 44 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 54 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 6 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 6 of 65 

 5.2.9 Delinquent Bills....................................................................................... 44 

 5.2.10 Voluntary Temporary Disconnect ........................................................... 45 

 5.2.11 Legal Action and Attorney’s Fees ........................................................... 45 

 5.2.12 Upon Vacating Premises ........................................................................ 45 

 5.2.13 Turn-On and Turn-Off Services .............................................................. 45 

5.3 COMPLAINTS AND DISPUTED BILLS .............................................................. 45 

 5.3.1 Meet and Confer ..................................................................................... 45 

 5.3.2 Arrangement of Meeting ......................................................................... 46 

 5.3.3 Presentation of Evidence ........................................................................ 46 

 5.3.4 Discontinuance of Service ...................................................................... 46 

5.4 DISCONNECTION FOR NONPAYMENT .......................................................... 46 

 5.4.1 Complaint Procedures for Disconnection ................................................ 46 

 5.4.2 Lien against Property for Non-Payment .................................................. 46 

 5.4.3 Service Charges for Violations ............................................................... 46 

 5.4.4 Partial Payments .................................................................................... 46 

 5.4.5 Authorization for Continuance of Service for Delinquent Accounts ......... 47 

5.5 ADDING DELINQUENT CHARGES TO TAX ROLL ........................................... 47 

 5.5.1 Report of Delinquent and Unpaid Charges ............................................. 47 

 5.5.2 Adoption and Filing of Report ................................................................. 47 

 5.5.3 Collection of Delinquent and Unpaid Charges ........................................ 47 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 55 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 7 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 7 of 65 

APPENDICES 
 

APPENDIX A DEFINITIONS 
 
APPENDIX B MANDATORY USE RESOLUTION 
 
APPENDIX C RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR DRINKING WATER SERVICE 
 /SECTION 10. CROSS CONNECTION CONTROL   
 
APPENDIX D CALIFORNIA CODE OF REGULATIONS/BACKFLOW 

PREVENTION AND CROSS CONNECTION CONTROL   
 
APPENDIX E APPLICATION FOR RECYCLED WATER SERVICE & 

CHECKLIST/ACTION FORM FOR OBTAINING RECYCLED  
 WATER SERVICE 
 
APPENDIX F RECYCLED WATER SERVICE ON-SITE DESIGN AND 
 CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS FOR NON-RESIDENTIAL SITES 
 
APPENDIX G RECYCLED WATER SERVICE ON-SITE DESIGN, REVIEW  
 AND INSPECTION PROCEDURES MANUAL FOR 
RESIDENTIAL  
 DUAL-PLUMBED HOMES 

 
APPENDIX H RECYCLED WATER SERVICE ON-SITE DESIGN AND 
 CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS FOR RESIDENTIAL 
 DUAL-PLUMBED HOMES 
 
APPENDIX I RECYCLED WATER SERVICE USE GUIDELINES FOR  
 RESIDENTIAL DUAL-PLUMBED HOMES 
 
APPENDIX J DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIONS REGARDING  
 RESIDENTIAL USE OF RECYCLED WATER 
 
APPENDIX K LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION  

  PROGRAM FOR RESIDENTIAL DUAL PLUMBED HOMES 
 

APPENDIX L RECYCLED WATER RATES, FEES AND CHARGES  

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 56 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 8 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 8 of 65 

SECTION 1 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
 
1.1 GENERAL 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District (the “District”) is dependent on local water supplies and 
imported water for domestic, agricultural and industrial uses. The development and 
utilization of recycled water results in a direct reduction in the amount of imported water 
needed by the District.  
 
In light of these circumstances, certain uses of drinking water may be considered 
unreasonable where recycled water is available.  In fact, Section 13551 of the California 
Water Code (CWC) specifically provides that water from any source of quality, suitable for 
drinking domestic use shall not be used for recycled uses, including cemeteries, golf 
courses, parks, highway landscaped areas and industrial and irrigation uses if suitable 
recycled water is available. Section 13552.2 of the CWC states that the use of drinking 
domestic water for the irrigation of residential landscaping is a waste or an unreasonable 
use of water.   Therefore, it is the goal of the District to develop and expand recycled water 
facilities to make recycled water more readily available. To maximize the use of recycled 
water, it is the intention of the District that new residential, commercial and industrial 
developments adhere to dual plumbing and/or dual-source requirements in areas where 
recycled water is anticipated and planned to be served. 

 
Using recycled water for recycled (non-drinkable) uses, such as irrigation, has multiple 
benefits including: 

 

• Conserves groundwater and surface water that would otherwise be used 
for recycled irrigation use. 

 

• Provides the District with a reliable and drought-proof water supply source. 
 

• Provides an alternative to wastewater discharge into tributaries of the 
Santa Ana River. 

 

• As a benefit to ratepayers, recycled water will generally be sold at a lower 
rate than drinking water. 

 
The use of recycled water from domestic wastewater is regulated by the California 
Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB). Permission to use recycled water is 
based on the ability to adequately treat domestic wastewater to the point that the recycled 
water (effluent) meets the requirements of existing Title 22, Division 4, Chapter 3 of the 
California Code of Regulations (CCR). Title 22 was promulgated by the State Department 
of Public Health (DPH) to ensure proper health protection and specify the level of 
treatment appropriate for the intended applications. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 57 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 9 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 9 of 65 

1.2 PURPOSE 

 
In accordance with waste discharge requirements for water recycling projects, the RWQCB 
and DPH require that Rules and Regulations for facilities using recycled water be established. 
The purpose of these Rules and Regulations is to regulate the use and distribution of recycled 
water produced by the District.     

 

These Rules and Regulations may be amended from time to time by action of the Board of 
Directors of the District. Amendments may be made without the consent of the User.  

 

1.3 GOALS 
 

Recycled water shall be produced, distributed and used in a manner that meets all 
Federal, State and local requirements for recycled uses and shall achieve the following: 

 
a) Conservation of drinking water supplies by using recycled water for current and future 

demands.  Recycled water uses shall be for the maximum public benefit and may 
include: 

 

• Agricultural irrigation 

• Commercial uses (including flushing toilets and urinals) 

• Construction use 

• Groundwater recharge 

• Industrial processes (including cooling towers) 

• Landscape irrigation 

• Landscape and/or recreational impoundments 

• Wildlife habitat 
 

b) Prevent direct human consumption of the recycled water through: 
 

• Adherence to all applicable rules and regulations 

• Posting of warning signs by the customer 

• Cross-connection/backflow prevention program 

• Education of the public 
 
c) For landscape irrigation; control run-off, ponding, and overspray of recycled water at 

all times by controlling the installation and operation of the systems using recycled 
water. 

 
d) Prevent contamination of drinking water supplies. 

 
e) Isolate contamination by other sources, such as wastewater, sludge, or other 

substances, which may come into contact with the recycled water. 
 

f) Monitor recycled water quality. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 58 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 10 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 10 of 65 

The use of gray water, as defined in Appendix A, is expressly excluded from these Rules and 
Regulations.   

 
1.4 WATER MASTER PLAN  
 

The District’s Board of Directors has adopted Resolution No. 08-2004, which established 
a water master plan for the District.  This Resolution is a policy statement related to, among 
other things, these Rules and Regulations for recycled water service. Resolution No. 08-
2004 is incorporated by reference into these Rules and Regulations except that these 
Rules and Regulations shall prevail in case of a conflict with that Resolution.   

 
1.5 APPLICABILITY 
 

These Rules and Regulations shall apply to all recycled water facilities constructed, 
maintained, and operated by the District.  
 
The District establishes these minimum standard procedures, specifications, and 
limitations for the safe orderly development and operation of recycled water facilities and 
systems owned or operated by Users.  These Rules and Regulations cover all aspects of 
the relationship between Users and the District regarding the application process for, the 
construction and operation of, the delivery of, and the administrative actions required for 
delivery of recycled water service to a User.  The District’s Board of Directors will adopt 
standard requirements for the design, construction, repair and maintenance, or connection 
to the District's recycled water system. 

 
1.6 SERVICE AREA   
 

These Rules and Regulations pertain to recycled water service to lands and/or 
improvements lying within the legal boundaries of the District unless otherwise stated.  
The District shall provide recycled water service in accordance with these Rules and 
Regulations. If the District recycled water service is extended beyond the current 
boundaries, any additional Users are subject to, and shall comply with, these Rules and 
Regulations. Recycled water service shall be provided to the service area when related 
distribution facilities are completed, and operational and recycled water service becomes 
available. 
 

1.7 SEVERABILITY 

 

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, part or portion of these Rules and 
Regulations is for any reason held to be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect any of the 
remaining portions of these Rules and Regulations. The District declares that each section, 
subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or part of these Rules and Regulations would have been 
adopted irrespective of the invalidity of any part.  These Rules and Regulations shall be 
interpreted so as to comply with applicable Federal and State laws and regulations. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 59 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 11 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 11 of 65 

1.8 WORDS AND PHRASES 
 

For the purpose of these Rules and Regulations all words used herein in the present tense 
shall include the future; all words in the plural number shall include the singular number; 
and, all words in the singular number shall include the plural number.  The terms “User” 
or “Users” shall mean anyone who uses recycled water from the District, and may include, 
without limitation, the applicant for such service, a customer of the District, a purveyor, 
and a property owner or resident.   

 
1.9 INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS 

 
The following documents, as they now exist and as they may be amended from time to 
time, are incorporated herein by this reference and made part thereof and thought fully set 
forth: 
 
1. Yucaipa Valley Water District Rules and Regulations for Water Service; Yucaipa 

Valley Water District Ordinance No. 48-1998. 
 
2. Yucaipa Valley Water District Backflow/Cross-Connection Control Regulations. 
 
3. California Water Code and the California Health and Safety Code. 
 
3. Reclamation Criteria; California Code of Regulations, Title 22, Division 4, Chapter 

3. 
 
4. Manual of Cross-Connection Control, Procedures and Practices; California 

Department of Public Health or Southern California Foundation for Cross-
Connection Control – 10th Edition. 

 
5. Regulations Relating to Cross-Connections; California Code of Regulations, Title 

17, Chapter 5, Subchapter 1. 
 
6. Standard Specifications for the Design and Processing, Furnishing of Materials, 

and Construction of Water Facilities, Yucaipa Valley Water District. 
 
7. Yucaipa Valley Water District Rules and Regulations for Sewer Connections and 

Use; Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. 54-2009.  
 
8. Application Process for Recycled Water Service and Checklist/Action Form for 

Obtaining Recycled Water Service; Yucaipa Valley Water District. 
 
9. Recycled Water Service On-Site Design and Construction Standards for Non-

Residential Sites; Yucaipa Valley Water District.  
 
10. Recycled Water Service On-Site Design and Construction Standards for 

Residential Dual-Plumbed Homes; Yucaipa Valley Water District. 
 
11. Recycled Water Service On-Site Design, Review and Inspection Procedures 

Manual for Residential Dual-Plumbed Homes; Yucaipa Valley Water District. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 60 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 12 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 12 of 65 

12. Recycled Water Service Use Guidelines for Residential Dual-Plumbed Homes; 
Yucaipa Valley Water District. 

 
13. Declaration of Restrictions Regarding Residential Use of Recycled Water; Yucaipa 

Valley Water District. 
 
14. Certified Landscape Irrigation Contractor for Residential Dual-Plumbed Homes; 

Yucaipa Valley Water District. 
 
15. Recycled Water Rates, Fees, and Charges; Yucaipa Valley Water District. 
 
16. The District’s most recent Regional Water Quality Control Board permit. 
 
17. All applicable Federal, State and Local Regulations. 
 
18. All other rules and regulations, as determined by the District’s Board of Directors. 

 
1.10 CONFLICTS 
 

If there is any conflict between the provisions of these Rules and Regulations and the 
provisions of any of the documents incorporated by reference, the most restrictive 
requirement shall control and prevail, as determined by the District. 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 61 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 13 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 13 of 65 

SECTION 2 
 

RECYCLED WATER SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 
 

 
2.1 GENERAL 
 
 The District’s recycled water shall be used in a manner that complies with any and all 

applicable Federal, State and local statutes, ordinances, regulations and other 
requirements for the treatment level supplied, and will achieve the following: 

 
a) Prevent direct human consumption of recycled water through: 

1. User/District adherence to all applicable laws, rules and regulations. 
2. Posting of warning signs by User. 
3. District Cross-Connection/Backflow Prevention Control Program. 

b) Control runoff of recycled water through District monitoring of the installation and 
operation of recycled water facilities and use areas. 

c) District monitoring of recycled water quality. 
  
 
 2.1.1 Recycled Water in Lieu of Drinking Water 
 

Where water is used for irrigation, commercial or industrial uses, landscape impoundment, 
wildlife habitat, or recreational impoundment, the District may provide recycled water in 
lieu of drinking water where technically and economically feasible. However, each use 
must be approved on a case-by-case basis. Determination of the specific uses to be 
allowed shall be in accordance with the treatment standards and water quality 
requirements set forth in Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations, and with the intent 
to protect public health. Each use shall, in addition, be subject to the availability of 
distribution facilities or the technical and economic feasibility of making such facilities 
available.  
 

 2.1.2 Authorized Uses 
 

Title 22 disinfected tertiary recycled water may be used in accordance to Section 60304 
of the California Code of Regulations for such uses as irrigation of parks, playgrounds, 
school yards, residential landscaping, unrestricted and restricted golf courses, vegetation, 
agriculture, freeway landscaping and cemeteries, groundwater recharge, flushing toilets 
and urinals, industrial process water, decorative fountains, commercial car washes and 
other uses not prohibited by other sections of the California Code of Regulations. 
 
Dual-plumbed homes may use the recycled water system for outside irrigation purposes 
only. Recycled water may not be used for drinking water, swimming pools, spas, car 
washing, fountains, or any other domestic uses.  
  

 2.1.3 Single Family Residences 
 

Applications will be accepted for the use of recycled water for single family homes, as long 
as the conversion would be technically and economically feasible and beneficial for the 
District.  

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 62 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 14 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 14 of 65 

2.2 EXISTING WATER SERVICES 
 

 2.2.1 Preliminary Determination 
 

 Based upon the availability of recycled water, the District’s staff shall make preliminary 
determinations as to which existing drinking water customers shall be converted to the 
use of recycled water.  Each water customer shall be notified of the basis for a 
determination that conversion to recycled water service will be required, as well as the 
proposed conditions and schedule for conversion. 

 
2.2.2 Notice of Determination 
 

 The notice of the preliminary determination, including the proposed conditions and time 
schedule for compliance, and a recycled water permit application shall be sent to the water 
customer by certified mail, return receipt requested. 
 
2.2.3 Objection and Appeals 
 

 The water customer shall file a notice of objection with the District within 30 days after any 
notice of determination to comply is mailed to the customer and may request 
reconsideration of the determination or modification of the proposed conditions or 
schedule for conversion.  The notice of objection requesting such reconsideration shall be 
in writing and shall specify the reasons for the objection.  The preliminary determination 
shall be final if the customer does not file a timely objection and all objections shall be 
deemed waived by the customer.  The General Manager shall review the objection and 
shall confirm, modify or abandon the preliminary determination.     

 
2.3 DEVELOPMENT AND NEW WATER SERVICE APPROVALS  

 
 2.3.1 Conditions 

 
 Upon application by a developer, owner or water customer (herein referred to as 

"applicant”) for a new industrial, commercial, or residential located within the District’s 
service area for which a tentative map or parcel map is required pursuant to Government 
Code, Section 66426 (or for new or altered water service), the District’s staff shall make a 
preliminary determination whether the current or proposed use of the subject property is 
required to be served with recycled water through dual-plumbed or dual-sourced facilities 
or to include dual-plumbed or dual-sourced facilities designed to accommodate the use of 
recycled water in the future.  Based upon such determination, use of recycled water and 
provision of recycled water distribution systems or other facilities for the use of recycled 
water, and application for a permit for such use may be required as a condition of approval 
of any such application, in addition to any other conditions of approval for service.  
 
2.3.2 Alteration and Remodeling 
 

 On a case-by-case basis, upon application for a permit for the alteration or remodeling of 
multi-family, commercial or industrial structures (including, commercial office buildings), 
the General Manager shall make a preliminary determination whether the subject property 
shall be required to be served with recycled water through dual-plumbed or dual-source 
facilities or to include dual-plumbed or dual-sourced facilities designed to accommodate 
the use of recycled water in the future.  Based upon such determination, use of recycled 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 63 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 15 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 15 of 65 

water and provision of recycled water distribution systems or other facilities for the use of 
recycled water, and application for a permit for such use, may be required as a condition 
of approval of the application. 
 
2.3.3 Notice of Determination 
 

 A notice of the basis for the preliminary determination, proposed conditions of approval 
and schedule for compliance shall be provided to the applicant prior to approval of the 
development application. 
 
2.3.4 Requested Service 
 

 On a case-by-case basis, upon application for a permit to use recycled water on a property 
not covered above, the General Manager shall make a determination whether the subject 
property shall be served with recycled water.   
 
2.3.5 Objections and Appeals 

 
 The applicant shall file a notice of objection with the District within 30 days after any notice 

of determination is mailed to the applicant and may request reconsideration of the 
determination or modification of the proposed condition or schedule for conversion.  The 
notice of objection requesting such reconsideration shall be in writing and shall specify the 
reasons for the objection.  The preliminary determination shall be deemed final and non-
appealable if the applicant does not file a timely objection, and all objections shall be 
deemed waived by the applicant.  The General Manager shall review the objection and 
shall confirm, modify or abandon the preliminary determination.     

 
2.4 RECYCLED WATER PERMIT PROCESS 
 

Upon a final determination by the District that a property shall be served with recycled 
water, or the adoption of a condition of development approval requiring use or 
accommodation of the use of recycled water, the water customer, owner or applicant shall 
apply for and obtain a recycled water permit.  (See Appendix E Application for Recycled 
Water Service) 

 
 2.4.1 Permit Conditions 

 
 The permit shall specify the design and operational requirements for the applicant's water 

distribution facilities and schedule for compliance, based on these Rules and Regulations 
and shall require compliance with both the California DPH Wastewater Recycling Criteria 
(see California Code of Regulations, Title 22), and requirements of the Regional Water 
Quality Control Board. Additional information is contained in Sections 2.5 and 2.6.  
 
2.4.2 Plan Approval 
 

 Plans for the recycled and drinking water distribution systems for the parcel shall be 
reviewed by the Recycled Water and Water Conservation Superintendent (or his/her 
designee) and a field inspection conducted before the permit is granted. Construction shall 
not begin until the District has granted plan approval.  
 
2.4.3 Permit Issuance 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 64 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 16 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 16 of 65 

 
 Upon the District’s approval of plans and completion and acceptance of the applicant 

application for recycled water services, the permit shall be issued.  Recycled water shall 
not be supplied to a property until inspection by the Recycled Water Supervisor (or his/her 
designee), and it is determined that the applicant is in compliance with the permit 
conditions.  The permit shall become effective when the project has been completely 
constructed, tested and been approved by the District and other appropriate agencies. 

 
2.5 APPLICATION PROCEDURE FOR RECYCLED WATER 
 

 2.5.1 Filing Application for Recycled Water Service 
 

A potential User meeting the requirements for recycled water service shall file an 
“Application for Recycled Water Service” (Appendix E) with the District. Applications must 
be made in writing and signed by the User and the property owner, if they are not one and 
the same.  

 
 2.5.2 Compliance with all Regulatory Requirements 
 

The applicant for recycled water shall comply with the requirements of these Rules and 
Regulations and any and all applicable Federal, State and local statutes, ordinances, 
regulations and other requirements. 

 

2.5.3 Application Fees and Other Charges 

 
Application fees, deposits, and capacity charges shall be paid in accordance with the schedule 
of rates established by the District and shall be subject to all terms and conditions of these 
Rules and Regulations. 

 

2.5.4 Regulatory Requirements 

 
As a condition precedent to the approval of applicant’s application for service, the District is 
required to apply for and process all applicable regulatory agency permits.  

 

2.5.5 Review of Application by the District 

 
Upon receipt of an application for recycled water service, the District shall review the 
application and conduct any necessary investigation in order to determine whether the District 
shall provide recycled water service.  The District shall prescribe requirements in writing to 
the applicant as to the facilities necessary to be constructed including design, manner of 
construction, method of operation and conditions of service. 

 

 

2.6 PERMITS 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 65 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 17 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 17 of 65 

 

2.6.1  General 
 
A District “Permit for Recycled Water Service” must be obtained by the User or applicant 
to receive recycled water on any property. The permit shall contain the following at a 
minimum: 
 

A. Quantity of recycled water to be used. 
B. Permitted uses. 
C. A drawing of the proposed on-site system showing the location and size of all 

valves, pipes, outlets and appurtenances; 
D. A statement that no changes in the proposed system will be undertaken without 

application for and approval of an amended District permit; and 
E. A statement that the applicant recognizes potential penalties for violation of the 

Rules and Regulations of the District and any regulatory agencies. 
 

A permit may not be renewed, and the District reserves the right to suspend or terminate the 
permit, or to modify its terms and conditions, if any of the following occurs: 

 

1. Change of the owner or user of the property covered by the permit. 
2. Change in the use of the property covered by the permit. 
3. Significant increase in recycled water use.  
4. Change in the qualitative characteristics of recycled water. 
5. Violation of these Rules and Regulations and other applicable regulations. 
6. Change in regulations. 

 
A new permit application must be submitted to reinstate a permit that has been terminated or 
has expired. 

 
2.6.2 Residential Dual-Plumbed Homes 

 

Section 2.6.1 also applies to residential dual-plumbed use sites with the exception that 
the permit cannot be terminated by and the use of recycled water must be accepted by all 
existing and future residential owners and residents. The Declaration of Restrictions 
Regarding Residential Use of Recycled Water is included in Appendix J and is recorded 
on the title of each residential dual-plumbed use site.  
 

2.7 ESTABLISHING SERVICE 
 

2.7.1 Request for Service Connection 

 
Following the District’s approval of on-site facility design or layout, and prior to on-site 
facility installation, the User shall request the District to install the meter(s), meter(s) will 
not be set until it is tested and certified. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 66 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 18 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 18 of 65 

Prior to regular service start-up, the service connection may be used to supply water to 
on-site facilities to permit testing of all or a portion of the facilities during installation. The 
District Inspector shall be notified at least 24 hours in advance of such intended use of 
recycled water and the District will provide temporary connection to the recycled or 
drinking water system for this purpose. If a temporary connection to the drinking water 
system is provided, a backflow device will be required on the temporary connection.  

 
The request for service connection shall be accompanied by all required fees for 
installation and connection as appropriate for the size and type of service. 

 

2.7.2 Temporary Use of Drinking Water 

 

At the discretion of the General Manager, drinking water may be made available on a 
temporary basis, until recycled water is available.  Before the User receives temporary 
drinking water, a permit for recycled water service, as described above, must be obtained 
for new on-site distribution facilities.  Prior to commencement of temporary drinking water 
service, an inspection of the on-site facilities will be conducted to verify that the facilities 
have been maintained and are in compliance with the recycled water permit and current 
requirements for service.  Upon verification of compliance, temporary drinking water shall 
be served to the parcel for the intended use.  If the facilities are not in compliance, the 
User shall be notified of the corrective actions necessary and shall have at least fifteen 
(15) calendar days to take such actions prior to initiation of enforcement proceedings. 
Applicants will only receive temporary drinking water through an approved backflow 
device. The level of protection shall be determined by the District based on the potential 
hazards on the property. 

 

2.7.3 District Not Liable for Damages through Leaking Pipes and Fixtures 

 

The District's jurisdiction and responsibility ends at the meter and the District will in no 
case be liable for damages occasioned by water running from open or faulty fixtures, or 
from broken or damaged pipes inside the property line. 

 

2.8  CONDITIONS FOR RECYCLED WATER SERVICE 
 

If any of the following conditions of service are not satisfied at all times, the Permit for Recycled 
Water Service may be revoked or terminated after which all recycled water service shall 
cease.  Connection to a drinking water system may not be allowed. Users shall be subject to 
the following conditions: 

 
A. The User shall adhere to requirements prescribed by these Rules and 

Regulations and to all additional requirements prescribed by the District and all 
other governing agencies pertaining to recycled water service.  

 
B. In order to maintain optimal operating conditions throughout the recycled water 

system, the District may control, and schedule recycled water use, if in the 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 67 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 19 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 19 of 65 

opinion of the District, scheduling is necessary for purposes, including but not 
limited to: 

 
1. Maintenance of an acceptable working pressure in the recycled 

water system; 
2. Providing for reasonable safeguards of public health; 
3. Availability of recycled water; and 
4. Maintenance, operation, or construction of recycled water facilities. 

 
Such scheduling may involve programming deliveries to different Users and/or 
to various portions of a single User's on-site system.  Any scheduling shall 
consider applicable constraints of all involved regulatory agencies, these Rules 
and Regulations, and the operating constraints of the affected customers. 

 
C. The District may terminate recycled water service when: (1) at any time recycled 

water at the terminal point of the District reclamation system does not meet the 
requirements of the regulatory agencies; (2) maintenance of the system is 
required; and/or (3) User is not following Rules and Regulations; (4) an 
emergency exists.  The District may provide backup water supply from other 
approved sources. In addition, approved air gap separations may be used to 
provide drinking water to the recycled water system to ensure reliability of water 
service. 

 
D. A recycled water service connection shall not be used to supply property not 

specified in the permit authorizing the connection. Each User shall limit the use 
of recycled water to those uses set forth in the permit for recycled water service 
approved by the District. 

 
E. A copy of the current permit must be available for review at all times, clearly 

posted at the use site, or on file at the User’s site, business, or non-residential. 
 
 2.8.1 Control and Maintenance of Facilities 

 
The District shall have control of and shall maintain and repair recycled water service lines 
and meters at and upstream of the meter.  The customer shall repair and maintain in good 
working conditions the recycled water system downstream of the meter.  The District shall 
have the right to inspect and test all connections and onsite facilities. 

 
 2.8.2 Prohibition of Changes 

 
The User shall not make any changes to the recycled water system without District 
approval (Appendix J).  Aside from regular maintenance and drip systems, any changes 
or alterations to existing onsite facilities, whether the result of intentional or unintended 
damage or disrepair, shall first be reviewed, approved and inspected by the District. 
 
2.8.3 Subdividing an Approved Service Area 
 
When a property provided with a recycled water service connection and water meter is 
subdivided, such connection and meter shall be considered as serving the lot or parcel of 
land on which the meter is located.  Additional recycled water distribution mains and/or 
service lines, agreements, easements for lines, and related facilities, and associated fees, 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 68 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 20 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 20 of 65 

if applicable, will be required for all subdivided areas in accordance with these Rules and 
Regulations.   

 
 
2.8.4 Service Connection and Meter Requirements 
 
 

A. All recycled water used on any property must pass through the meter.  The User 
shall use the User’s valve on their respective side of the service installation, to 
control the flow of water to the piping on the premises. The User shall not use the 
District’s angle meter stop or angle valve to turn water on and off for convenience.  

 
B. The service connection extending from the recycled water main to the angle meter 

stop, angle valve, the meter, and meter box shall be maintained by the District. All 
pipes and fixtures extending or lying beyond the meter towards the customer’s site 
shall be installed and maintained by the owner of the property. 

 
C. The District reserves the right to set and maintain a meter on any service 

connection.  The recycled water User shall be held liable for any damage to the 
meter due to his/her negligence or carelessness. 

 
D. All service connections shall comply with District specifications. Meters will be 

installed in the parkway or other approved area and shall be owned by the District. 
The District shall have access at all times to its meters and service connections 
located on the customer’s property.  No rent or other charge will be paid by the 
District for a meter or other facilities, including connections. All meters will be 
sealed by the District at the time of installation, and no seal shall be altered or 
broken except by one of the District’s authorized employees or agents.  

 
E. Each service connection installed by the District shall be equipped with an angle 

meter stop or angle valve on the inlet side of the meter. Such valve or angle meter 
stop is intended for the exclusive use of the District in controlling the water supply 
through the service connection line. The District shall own the angle meter stop or 
angle valve, but if the angle meter stop or angle valve is damaged by the User to 
an extent requiring replacement, such replacement shall be at the User’s expense. 

 
F. The District reserves the right to enter upon the User’s premises for the purpose 

of reading, repairing or replacing the water service meter.  The User shall be solely 
responsible for the control of all animals which may pose a threat to District 
employees and shall be liable for any injury to District employee resulting from 
unrestrained animals.  Should a new User fail to properly restrain animals present 
on the property, the District may, upon written notice, refuse to install or turn on 
service, or may terminate or suspend service, until such time as the District 
determines that a threat to its employees no longer exists.  In the case of existing 
customers, where District employees may encounter some personal risk in 
attempting to read a meter (due to the presence of unrestrained animals, or 
otherwise), the employee is not required to read the meter, and the User's bill will 
be estimated based upon the last year's consumption plus the average increase 
in consumption in the District, or by such other method as is determined by the 
District. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 69 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 21 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 21 of 65 

G. Meters moved for the convenience of the User will be relocated at User’s expense. 
Meters moved for the convenience of or to protect the District’s property, will be 
moved at District expense.  

 
2.8.5 Conditions of Pressure and Service 

 
 The District does not warrant or agree to maintain any minimum or maximum level of water 

pressure.  Additionally, the District reserves the right to discontinue service while making 
emergency repairs, or other work required on the water system as determined by the 
General Manager and/or representatives of the District.  All Users of recycled water 
service shall be required to accept such conditions of pressure and service as are provided 
by the distribution system at the location of the proposed service connection, and to hold 
the District harmless for any damages arising out of low pressure or high-pressure 
conditions, surges or interruptions of service.  

 
The District is not responsible for any condition of the recycled water itself or any 
substance that may be mixed with or be in recycled water as delivered to any customer, 
except as required by Title 22, Division 4, Chapter 3, of the California Code of Regulations.  
 
2.8.6   Conditions of Hauling Recycled Water 
 
The District has a program that allows residents to have free recycled water from Yucaipa 
Valley Regional; Water Filtration Facility. User must complete the Recycled Water Fill 
Station class, once completed Users can haul recycled water in 300-gallon increments in 
a labeled tote, the label is provided by the District indicating the use of the tote for hauling 
recycled water.  The recycled water hauled is to be used immediately and not to be stored.  
Hauling any amount of 300 gallons required licensing for a Water Hauler’s Permit issued 
by the State.   

 
2.9 SIZE AND LOCATION OF SERVICE CONNECTIONS 

 
 The District reserves the right to determine the number and size of service connections, 

lines, meters and other service appurtenances and their locations with respect to the 
boundaries of the premises to be served.  Service installations will be made only to 
property abutting on distribution mains as have been constructed in public streets, alleys 
or easements, or to extensions thereof as herein provided.  Services installed in new 
subdivisions prior to the construction of streets in advance of street improvements must 
be accepted by the applicant in the installed location. 

 
 No more than one service connection for recycled water supply shall be installed for one 

use area, except under special conditions and with District approval.  
 

2.10 CROSS-CONNECTION PREVENTION 
 

2.10.1 Purpose 
 

 The primary purpose of this section is to protect the District's drinking water supplies 
against actual, undiscovered, unauthorized, or potential cross-connections to the 
customer's recycled water system.  The regulations relating to cross-connections are 
established in the California Code of Regulations and the Yucaipa Valley Water District 
Rules and Regulations for Water Service, Section 10 - Cross-Connection Control 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 70 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 22 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 22 of 65 

(Appendix C), as amended from time to time, and are hereby adopted and incorporated 
herein by reference and made a part hereof.  The provisions of this section shall be in 
addition to, and not in lieu of, the controls and requirements of other regulatory agencies, 
including, without limitation, State and local health departments.   

 
 The secondary purpose of this section is to protect the District’s recycled water system 

from other contaminants.  
 

2.10.2 Backflow Prevention for Drinking Water Supply 
 
Regulations governing backflow prevention devices are intended to protect the District’s 
drinking water supplies and are not intended to protect Users from potential hazards of 
cross-connections in the User’s onsite facilities. 

 

A. District-approved backflow prevention for the drinking water supply shall be 
provided by the customer in accordance with these Rules and Regulations and 
as required by the District. Backflow devices for residential dual-plumbed 
Users shall be maintained by the District.  

 

B. Installation of backflow prevention devices shall be in accordance with the 
requirements specified by the current version of the District’s standards, the 
Uniform Plumbing Code and Titles 17 and/or 22 of the California Code of 
Regulations.  

 
C. Provision, installation, maintenance and inspection of backflow prevention 

devices shall be the sole responsibility and duty of the User, and at the User’s 
expense.  Inspection and testing of backflow prevention devices shall be done 
by an entity acceptable to the District at least once a year in accordance with 
the California Code of Regulations, or more often in those instances where 
successive inspections indicate repeated failures. Failure to inspect the device 
annually by an the District or District appointed agent and/or to repair or replace 
the device within 30 days of when the device is determined to be defective or 
in disrepair will result in the District issuing a Notice of Violation per Section 
2.15. Backflow devices installed at residential dual-plumbed use sites 
shall be, installed, maintained, and inspected by the District.  

 
D. Backflow prevention devices are to be installed at the same time the drinking 

water meter is installed and shall be located on the property served as close to 
the meter as possible.  

 
E. If a User fails to install and maintain said device as prescribed, the District shall 

serve the customer with a Notice of Violation per Section 2.15 and will 
discontinue drinking water and/or recycled water service to the premise if the 
violation is not corrected.  

 
2.10.3 Type of Protection 

 
The level of protection required is related to the degree of hazard that the District 
determines exists on the premises served.  Listed in increasing levels of protection, the 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 71 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 23 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 23 of 65 

following protective devices may be required:  Reduced Pressure Principle Backflow 
Prevention Assembly (RPPA), Double Check Valve Assembly (DC) and Air Gap 
Separation (AG). The User may choose a higher level or protection than required by the 
District. The minimum types required are specified by the California Code of Regulations 
and in Section 10 of the District’s Rules and Regulations for Drinking Water Service. 
Situations not listed shall be evaluated on a case-by-case basis and the appropriate level 
of protection required shall be determined by the District in consultation with the County 
and the State Department of Public Health. 

 

2.10.4 Protection of the Recycled Water System 
 

The District may require backflow protection on recycled water services if the 

District determines that there is an actual or potential cross connection on-site 

that could contaminate the District’s recycled water service.  

 
2.10.5 Cross-Connection Control Testing 
 

Each reuse site must pass a cross-connection test prior to the initiation of 

recycled water service, and every four years thereafter, at any time a potential 

or suspected cross-connection exists, and upon change of use site and/or 

business ownership.  Specifics of the test procedure are included in the 

District’s Recycled Water Service On-Site Design and Construction Standards 

(Appendix F and H). Prior to any testing, the cross-connection control 

specialist for the District will notify the California DPH of the proposed cross-

connection test. The notification will take place a minimum of one (1) week 

before the actual test date and will include the time and location of the 

proposed testing.  Upon completion of the testing, the cross-connection control 

specialist will submit a written report to the District summarizing the results 

of the testing.  The report will be submitted within two (2) weeks after the 

testing occurs.  The report will include copies of the actual recorder charts from 

the pressure recorders if used during the testing.   
 
2.10.6 Color Coding Recycled Water Systems 

 
Any property that is provided recycled water service, all recycled water pipelines, valves, 
and other fittings shall be purple and marked to distinguish clearly which is used for 
drinking water and which is used for recycled water.  All recycled water quick couplers 
shall be posted with bilingual precautionary tags with the wording “CAUTION: RECYCLED 
WATER – DO NOT DRINK”, and “PELIGRO: AGUA IMPURA – NO BEBER”.  Main shut-
off valves shall be clearly identified to distinguish between recycled water and drinking 
water systems.  See Section 3.3.2 for additional color-coding requirements. 

 
 

2.11 ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIONS ON THE USES OF RECYCLED WATER 
 
 2.11.1 Runoff, Ponding and Overspray 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 72 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 24 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 24 of 65 

The on-site facilities shall be designed to meet the peak irrigation demand of all plant 
materials used within the design area and to apply irrigation water in a manner compatible 
with the infiltration rates of the soil types within the approved use area. 

 
Conditions that directly or indirectly cause a run-off of recycled water outside of the 
approved recycled water use areas, cause a ponding or overspray of recycled water, or 
permit windblown spray to pass outside of the approved use area, whether by design, 
construction practice, or system operation, shall be eliminated with the use of the best 
practicable technology or methodology. 

 

Areas irrigated with recycled water shall be managed to prevent ponding and conditions 
conducive to the proliferation of mosquitoes and other disease vectors, and to avoid 
creation of a public nuisance or health hazard.  The following practices shall be 
implemented, at a minimum: 

 

A. Ditches receiving irrigation runoff, not serving as wildlife habitat, shall be 
maintained free of emergent, marginal, and floating vegetation. 

 

B. Low-pressure and unpressurized pipelines and ditches accessible to mosquitoes 
shall not be used to store recycled water. 

 
 2.11.2 Protection of Drinking Fountains and Public Facilities 
 

Any and all drinking fountains located within an approved recycled water use area shall 
be protected by relocation or isolating them from contact with recycled water, whether by 
windblown spray or by direct application through irrigation or other approved uses.  
Recycled water irrigation systems shall not be installed near food establishments or public 
facilities such as picnic tables.  The goal is to eliminate, to the best extent possible, any 
potential for overspray of recycled water onto food establishments, picnic tables and 
drinking fountains in the most economical way.  Alternative methods of accomplishing this 
shall include: 

 
1. eliminating the facility in question, 
2. moving the facility out of the irrigated area, 
3. modifying the irrigation system to eliminate the potential for overspray (i.e. drip 

or bubbler systems) or not to irrigate in the area (eliminate landscaping or require 
hand watering in this area), 

4. protect the facility with a hood or screening wall/structure. 
 

Additional methods may also be acceptable and will be evaluated on a case-by-case 
basis. 

 
 2.11.3 Hose Bibs and Quick Couplers 
 

No User shall use or install any hose bibs on a recycled water system regardless of 
style, construction or identifications.  The use of quick couplers is at the sole discretion 
of the District.  Their intended use shall require a separate plan review from the District.  
Only quick couplers with the approved color, size, and identification will be allowed. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 73 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 25 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 25 of 65 

 
2.12 RIGHT OF ENTRY 
 
 The officers, inspectors, managers, General Manager and any duly authorized employees 

of the District shall carry identification establishing their position as an authorized 
representative of the District.  Upon showing such identification to a User, such a District 
employee shall be permitted to enter in and upon any and all buildings, industrial facilities 
and properties to which the District is furnishing recycled water, or has been requested to 
furnish recycled water, for the purpose of inspection, re-inspection, observation, 
measurement, sampling, testing or otherwise performing such duties as may be necessary 
in the enforcement of the provisions of the ordinances, resolutions, and these Rules and 
Regulations of the District pursuant to the authorization contained in the required 
application for recycled water service. 
 

2.13 PROTECTION OF DISTRICT PROPERTY 
 
2.13.1 District Property 
 
The District will furnish a system used for and useful in obtaining recycled water for public 
and private uses, including all appurtenances to it, and lands, easements, rights in land, 
water rights, contract rights, franchises, and other water supply, storage and distribution 
facilities and equipment. Each User shall be responsible for furnishing, installing, operating 
and maintaining all facilities necessary to convey water from the customer valve to the use 
area.  
 
All facilities installed by the District on private property for the purpose of rendering 
recycled water service shall remain the property of the District and may be maintained, 
repaired, or replaced by the District without consent or interference of the owner or 
occupant of the property. The property owner shall use reasonable care in the protection 
of the facilities.  
 
2.13.2 Tampering with District Property 
 
Except as otherwise specifically authorized by the General Manager, no one, except an 
employee or representative of the District, shall at any time, in any manner operate the 
angle meter stops or valves, main gates or valves of the District’s system, including but 
not limited to meters or their connections, street mains, or other parts of the water system.  
 
No person or entity shall maliciously, willfully, or negligently break, damage, destroy, 
uncover, deface or tamper with any structure, appurtenance or equipment which is a part 
of the District’s recycled water system. Any person or entity violating this provision shall 
be subject to prosecution, penalties and fines as provided by law. 
 
2.13.3 Damage to Water System Facilities 
 
The User shall be liable for any damage to the service facilities when such damage is from 
causes originating on the User’s premises by an act of User, tenant, agent, employee, 
contractor, licensee, or permittee, including the breaking or destruction of locks by the 
User or others on or near a meter, and all damage to a meter that may result. The District 
shall be reimbursed by the User for any such damage promptly on presentation of a bill.  
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 74 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 26 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 26 of 65 

2.13.4 Ground Wire Attachments 
 
All Users are forbidden to attach any ground-wire or wires to any plumbing which is or may 
be connected to a service connection or main belonging to the District. The District will 
hold the User liable for any damage to its property or injury to District personnel or 
representative(s) occasioned by such ground-wire attachments.  
 

2.14 TURN OFF PROCEDURES 
 

The District may disconnect, terminate or suspend a User's service for various reasons. 
Such disconnections are affected by turning off, locking, or sealing the meter, thereby 
stopping the recycled water service.  The User will be notified of disconnection in person, 
or by placing a disconnection notice on the door.  Reasons for disconnection include, but 
are not limited to, the following: 

 
(a) FOR PROTECTION OF PUBLIC HEALTH:  The District may terminate 

recycled water service at any time, with or without advance notice, if the 
recycled water at any point in the District's distribution system does not 
meet the requirements of regulatory agencies, including those prescribed 
by the California Code of Regulations, Title 22, Division 4, Chapter 3.  
Recycled water service would, in such case, be renewed at such time as 
recycled water would again meet the requirements of regulatory agencies, 
or at such time as the District would supplement the recycled water system 
with water from other sources. 

 
(b) FOR NON-PAYMENT OF BILLS:  A service may be disconnected for 

nonpayment of recycled water bills. A service may be disconnected for 
nonpayment of any water charges of a User, whether or not the payment 
delinquency is associated with recycled water service at that service 
connection or at any other District recycled or domestic water service 
connection of that same User. See Section 5. 

 
(c) FOR NON-COMPLIANCE WITH RULES:  Recycled  water service may be 

terminated in the manner provided herein at any time the User's operations 
do not conform to these Rules and Regulations and related permit. 

 
 Where safety of water supply or public health is endangered, or regulations 

have been violated, service may be disconnected immediately without 
notice.  The District may disconnect service to any User for any violation of 
these Rules and Regulations or permit after it has given the User at least 
fifteen day written Notice of Violation.   

 
(d) FOR WASTE OF WATER:  In order to protect itself against any waste or 

misuse of recycled water, the District may issue a Notice of Violation per 
Section 2.15.3 and disconnect and terminate service if such wasteful 
practices are not remedied.  

 
(e) FOR UNSAFE OR HAZARDOUS CONDITIONS:  The District may 

disconnect a service without notice if unsafe or hazardous conditions are 
found to exist on the customer's premises.  The District will notify the 
customer as soon as possible of the reasons and the necessary corrections 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 75 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 27 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 27 of 65 

required before reconnection.  Such unsafe or hazardous conditions may 
exist due to defective appliances or equipment that may be detrimental to 
either the customer, the District, or to the District's other customers, or the 
general public. 

 
(f) FOR FRAUDULENT USE OF SERVICE:  When the District has discovered 

that a customer has obtained service by fraudulent means or has diverted 
the recycled water service for unauthorized use, the service to that 
customer may be disconnected without notice.  The District will not restore 
service to such site until an applicant has complied with all rules and 
regulations of the District and the District has been reimbursed for the full 
amount of the service rendered and the actual cost to the District incurred 
by reason of the fraudulent use. 

 
2.15 VIOLATIONS 
 

It shall be unlawful for any person to connect to, construct, install, provide, maintain or use 
any other means of recycled water facilities in any manner other than as provided for in 
these Rules and Regulations.   
 
2.15.1 Public Nuisance 
 
Discharge of wastes or the use of recycled water in any manner in violation of these Rules 
and Regulations or of any permit issued hereunder is hereby declared a public nuisance 
and shall be corrected or abated as directed by the Recycled Water and Water 
Conservation Superintendent (or his/her designee).  Any person creating such a public 
nuisance is guilty of a misdemeanor. 

 
2.15.2 Injunction 

 
Whenever a discharge of wastes or use of recycled water is in violation of these Rules 
and Regulations or otherwise causes or threatens to cause a condition of nuisance, the 
District may seek injunctive relief as may be appropriate to enjoin such discharge or use. 

 
2.15.3 Permit Revocation and Termination of Service 

 
In addition to any other statute or rule authorizing termination of water service, the District 
may revoke a permit issued hereunder and terminate service if a violation of these Rules 
and Regulations or any other law or regulation is found to exist or if use of recycled water 
causes or threatens to cause a nuisance.  A failure of any User or applicant to comply with 
these Rules and Regulations and any related permit issued hereunder and any violation 
of these Rules and Regulations, the permit, and any laws and regulations governing the 
use of recycled water shall constitute a public nuisance.  Upon small occurrences of such 
a breach (overspray, ponding, pooling, unauthorized hours of watering, no site supervisor, 
etc.), default or violation, the District, by and through its General Manager, or his/her 
designee, shall deliver a fifteen (15) day Notice of Violation to the customer, owner or 
applicant causing such breach, default or violation, and such customer or applicant shall 
have fifteen (15) days from the date the Notice of Violation is delivered to the customer or 
applicant to cure and correct the default, breach or violation.  A failure by the customer or 
applicant to correct or cure the default, breach or violation within that fifteen (15) day period 
shall result in immediate and automatic termination of the customer or applicant’s right to 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 76 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 28 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 28 of 65 

take recycled water from the District’s facilities and a physical disconnection shall be 
affected by the District at the District’s facilities with no further notice.  
 
If the violation is determined by the District to be an imminent threat to public health, the 
District, by and through its General Manager, or his/her designee, shall deliver an 
Emergency Notice of Violation which will results in immediate and automatic termination 
of the customer or applicant’s right to take recycled water from the District’s facilities and 
a physical disconnection shall be affected by the District at the District’s facilities with no 
further notice. 
 
2.15.4 Penalty 

 
Any User or applicant who violates these Rules and Regulations or any permit issued 
hereunder, will results in immediate and automatic termination of the customer or 
applicant’s right to take recycled water from the District’s facilities and a physical 
disconnection shall be affected by the District at the District’s facilities with no further 
notice.  Recycled water will not be re-established until the owner has corrected the 
violations and paid the fees assessed by the District for disconnection and reconnection 
of the meter. Under no circumstances is the owner authorized to connect the irrigation 
system to the drinking water system, if this occurs both the recycled water and the drinking 
water will be physically disconnected.  Drinking water will not be reconnected until the 
recycled water system is no longer attached to the drinking water system and the system 
has passed a cross connection test.  The Owner will be required to pay fees associated 
with the cross-connection test, disconnection and reconnection fees of both meters.   
 
Fifteen (15) Day Notice of Violation 

a. First Notice (Day 1) – Customer has ten (10) days to comply. 
b. Second Notice (Day 11) – Customer has five (5) days to comply. 
c. Third Notice (Day 15) – Disconnection of recycled water supply. 

  
 Emergency Notice of Violation 

a. Immediate shut down of recycled water supply. 
 

2.15.5 Noncompliance and Damage Costs; Indemnification 
 

In the event of any default, breach or violation of these Rules and Regulations, and any 
related permit shall entitle the District to recover its costs incurred in processing Notice(s) 
of Violation, the performance of sampling, monitoring or laboratory analysis related to any 
such default, breach and/or violation including any fines, penalties, damages, and 
attorneys’ fees incurred by the District in connection with its investigation and prosecution 
of any such breaches, defaults or violations.  User or applicant shall be liable for all costs, 
including all damages incurred by the District as a result of any breach, default or violation 
of these Rules and Regulations, the related permit, and any laws and regulations 
governing the use of recycled water.  User or applicant shall defend and indemnify the 
District for any damages, fines, penalties, costs or attorneys’ fees incurred by the District 
as a direct or indirect result of a User’s violation of these Rules and Regulations.   

 
2.15.6 Appeal 

 
Any appeal of a Notice of Violation issued by the General Manager shall be filed in writing 
with the General Manager within ten (10) days after the issuance of the Notice of Violation. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 77 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 29 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 29 of 65 

The appeal shall contain an itemized and substantial basis for rescinding the Notice of 
Violation and shall include any and all supporting documents.  Such an appeal will be 
considered and heard by the District’s Board of Directors and that Board’s determination 
will be final.  Upon the filing of such an appeal any further actions by the General Manager 
shall be stayed until such time as the Board of Directors makes a final decision.   
 
2.15.7 Conversion of Facilities from Recycled Water Use 
 

 If, due to on-site recycled water system failure or use violations, the District deems it 
necessary to convert on-site facilities from a recycled water supply to a drinking water 
supply, or other, water supply, it shall be the responsibility of the customer, unless 
determined otherwise by the District, to pay all costs for such conversion, by way of, but 
not limited to, the following items: 
 

1. Isolation of the recycled water supply.  Service shall be removed and plugged 
by the District at the District main or abandoned in a manner approved by the 
District. 

2. The customer shall install approved backflow devices on any and all drinking 
water, or other, water meter connections. 

3. The removal of the special recycled water quick-couplers including the 
replacement of these with approved valves for drinking water systems. 

4. Notification to all on-site personnel involved. 
5. The removal of all warning labels/signs. 
6. The installation of all drinking waterlines and facilities and any capacity fees 

due, as provided for in the District's “Rules and Regulations for Drinking Water 
Service.” 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 78 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 30 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 30 of 65 

SECTION 3 
 

FACILITIES DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION 
 
 
3.1 DESIGN GUIDELINES  
 

The design of the off-site facilities, including the preparation of plans and specifications, shall 
be under the responsibility of an engineer registered with the State of California.  The design 
of the on-site facilities that will use recycled water, and the preparation of plans and 
specifications shall be under the responsibility of a landscape architect, civil engineer or 
mechanical engineer registered with the State of California familiar with the design of such 
systems. 

 

In the case of dual-plumbed residential use sites, the District will accept plans prepared by a 
non-registered person, as long as the preparer has taken the District’s Site Supervisor 
Training Program (Appendix K). The orientation programs will be held at regular monthly or 
quarterly intervals to provide required information for those who design, install, maintain and 
use recycled water for landscape irrigation. The District will maintain a list of “certified” 
contractors that have attended the orientation program and are approved for work on on-site 
recycled water systems.  The preparer of residential plans does not have to be a licensed C27 
contractor; however, the installer must either be 1) a licensed landscape contractor who has 
been certified by the District or 2) the homeowner who has taken the District’s Site Supervisor 
Training Program. 

 

All on-site recycled water facilities shall comply with the Guidelines for Distribution of Recycled 
Water developed by the American Water Works Association (AWWA), California-Nevada 
Section, and shall also comply with all the requirements, conditions and standards set forth in 
the current edition of the District’s applicable Recycled Water Service On-Site Design and 
Construction Standards (Appendix F and H), these Rules and Regulations, and other related 
design standards and construction specification guidelines. The recycled water system, 
including both off-site and on-site facilities, shall be separate and independent of any drinking 
water system.   

 

3.2 OFF-SITE FACILITIES 

 
Any off-site recycled water facilities that are required to serve the User's property shall be 
provided at the customer’s expense, unless the District determines it is a District benefit 
to construct such capital facilities. 
 
3.2.1 Application 

 
 Owners of property desiring the District to provide recycled water service to their lot, 

parcel, subdivision or other property within the District which is not presently fronting a 
District recycled water main shall make written application for a recycled water main 
extension to serve their property.  The application process shall be the same as provided 
in Section 2. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 79 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 31 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 31 of 65 

 
 Upon receiving the application, the General Manager or his designee, shall make an 

investigation of the proposed development and state findings and recommendations for 
approval or denial of the main extension application. 

 
3.2.2 Financial Arrangements 

 
 Upon approval by the District of an application for a recycled water main extension, the 

property owner shall make payment to the District of all applicable charges as outlined in 
Section 5 hereof prior to commencement of any construction of recycled water facilities. 
If such facilities are required by the District to be larger than the size determined by the 
District to be required for providing adequate service to the property described in the 
application submitted to the District, the District may contract with the customer for 
reimbursement on a pro rata basis for the difference between the cost of the oversized 
facilities and the facilities which otherwise would be required to provide adequate service 
to the property. 

 
3.2.3 Plans 

 
 The property owner shall, at their expense, cause to have prepared a complete set of 

engineered recycled water plans, consistent with District specifications and requirements 
of the District's current Master Plan.  Such plans shall show all valves, fire hydrants, 
pipelines, pump stations, reservoirs, wells, service lateral locations and other 
appurtenances deemed necessary by the General Manager.  Plan check fees are due and 
payable to the District upon submittal of said plans for District review and approval. 

 
3.2.4 District Installation 

 
 At the option of the Board of Directors, the District may install the necessary main 

extension(s) to new developments.  In such instances, the owner or applicant shall deposit 
monies for all estimated costs associated with the proposed improvements prior to District 
construction. Upon completion of construction, actual costs will be determined and deposit 
monies applied to the actual cost of the work.  Owner will be billed or refunded the 
difference between the deposit amount and actual construction cost. 

 
 3.2.5 Owner Installation 
 
 When recycled water main extensions are to be constructed by the property owner, the 

property owner shall have a contractor, licensed by the State of California, perform the 
work.  Such construction shall be in accordance with the approved plans and standard 
specifications on file with the District.  Prior to construction of any recycled water main 
extension or improvement, all costs due to the District must be paid for inspection, 
acquisition of service charges, and meters.  Additionally, all bonds or letters of credit for 
labor and materials, faithful performance, maintenance and security must be properly 
executed and, in a form, and in an amount acceptable to the District before authorization 
to construct said facilities will be issued.  All owners, their agents, or developers shall enter 
into an “Agreement for Installation and Transfer of Title of Recycled Water System 
Facilities” prior to receiving authorization to construct. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 80 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 32 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 32 of 65 

 3.2.6 Length of Main Extension 
 
 The extension of any recycled water main shall be installed to the furthest property line of 

the parcel to be served, and in no case shall dead-end lines be permitted without a flush 
out provided in accordance with District standards.  Circulating lines shall be designed 
and installed as part of any main extension. 

 
 All properties in excess of 200 ft. from any existing recycled water distribution line shall be 

required to extend the distribution line to include the public right-of-way frontage of their 
property and, at the discretion of the General Manager, the installation of such lines 
necessary to eliminate a dead-end line. 

 
 3.2.7 Bond Requirements 
 
 The District requires that all developers performing recycled water system improvements 

in accordance with approved plans and specifications furnish appropriate guarantees 
assuring completion of the work, extended maintenance and payment for all labor and 
materials.  Such guarantees shall be in the form of bonds or an irrevocable letter of credit 
issued by a bank authorized to do business in the State of California.  Coverage amounts, 
where bonds are furnished, or deposit amounts where Letters of Credit are issued, shall 
be in accordance with the “Agreement for Installation and Transfer of Title of Recycled 
water System Facilities” on file with the District. 

 
 3.2.8 Main Extension Reimbursement Agreement 
 
 Where recycled water main extensions are installed by an applicant and said main 

extension shall be of benefit to another property or properties in the future, said applicant 
may enter into a reimbursement agreement with the District.  Said reimbursement 
agreement may provide for a refund payment of frontage charges collected by the District 
for service connection to a recycled water main, paid for by the new applicant, less any 
administrative costs incurred by the District.  All reimbursement agreements shall expire 
and become invalid ten (10) years from the date the main extension was accepted by 
District.  Said reimbursement agreements shall contain the expiration date of the 
agreement. 

 
 3.2.9 Property of District 
 
 Upon final acceptance by the District of all installations of recycled water mains and 

appurtenances, said facilities shall become the property of the District, as outlined in the 
“Agreement for Installation and Transfer of Title of Recycled water System Facilities”. 

 
 3.2.10 Easements and Rights of Way 
 
 Whenever possible, all main lines, service connections, laterals and other appurtenances 

required by the District are to be installed within the public right-of-way.  On rare occasions, 
circumstances may dictate that recycled water facilities may have to be constructed within 
deeded easements.  Prior to installation of any recycled water lines, the owner must deliver 
any necessary grants of easement to the District in a form approved by the District. 

 
 The District may agree to vacate existing recycled water facility easements at the request 

of the owner, provided the owner fulfills the requirements of the District as follows: 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 81 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 33 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 33 of 65 

 
a.   Acceptable design of an alternate recycled water facility is submitted to the 

District for approval; and 
b.   Said alternative recycled water facility is constructed by owner according 

to District approved plans; and 
c.   Final acceptance by District of all newly constructed alternative recycled 

water facilities is provided to the owner by District in writing; and 
d.   Owner agrees in writing to pay all costs associated with the District 

retaining a qualified appraiser to determine a current value of the easement 
to be vacated; and 

e.   Owner pays to the District the fair market value as established by said 
appraiser for said easement. 

 
 Upon fulfillment of all of the above conditions, to the satisfaction of the District, the District 

will then record a quit claim deed with the office of the County Recorder relinquishing all 
rights to said easement. 

 
 3.2.11 Conversion of Existing Facilities to Recycled Water Use 
 
 Only at (non-residential) institutions, industrial businesses, and commercial business 

where it is planned that an existing drinking water system be converted to a recycled water 
facility, the facilities to be converted to recycled water shall be investigated in detail. The 
District shall review the record drawings, prepare required reports, and determine the 
measures necessary to bring the system into full compliance with these Rules and 
Regulations.  No existing drinking water facilities shall be connected to, or incorporated 
into, the recycled water system without District and other regulatory agency testing and 
approval.   

 
 3.2.12 Marking Water Facilities 

 
 The customer's recycled water facilities shall be painted, banded, marked, or otherwise 

differentiated with the color Purple to clearly distinguish which water is safe (i.e., drinking 
water) and which is not safe (i.e., recycled water) in accordance with local and health 
department requirements. The same color/markings shall always be used to indicate the 
same type of water throughout the system. All outlets from recycled water systems shall 
be posted or tagged, with approved Purple signage, as being contaminated and unsafe 
for drinking purposes. All outlets intended for drinking (i.e., drinking water) purposes shall 
be plainly marked to indicate that fact.  The markings shall comply with posting 
requirements of the Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations, and recommendations 
given in the “Guidelines for the Distribution of Recycled Water” (California-Nevada 
Section, American Water Works Association).   
 

3.3 ON-SITE FACILITIES 

 
All on-site recycled water facilities which benefit the approved use area shall be provided 
by the applicant, owner or customer at his/her expense.  The customer shall make, at 
his/her expense, any modification to the drinking water system on the premises which is 
required by the District, in order to permit recycled water service, including but not limited 
to the installation by the customer of approved backflow prevention devices.  On-site 
recycled water facilities shall be designed to accommodate the use of recycled water in 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 82 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 34 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 34 of 65 

those areas where the District has determined that recycled water will be supplied in the 
future, even though recycled water service is not immediately available when the design 
area is ready for construction.  Provisions shall be made for connections to the recycled 
water system when it becomes available. 

 
 3.3.1 Identification of On-Site Pipes and Fittings 

 
 All materials, apparatus, piping valves, controllers, sprinkler heads, pumps, etcetera shall 

be marked or identified in conformance to the “Guidelines for Distribution of Recycled 
Water” (California-Nevada Section, American Water Works Association), and: 

 
(a)  All recycled water valves and outlets must be purple and are required to be 

appropriately tagged to inform the public and employees that the water is 
not to be used for drinking water purposes.   

 
(b)   All piping, valves and outlets should be color-coded purple to differentiate 

recycled water from drinking water facilities as specified in Section 3.3.2. 
All piping and valves must also be appropriately labeled or continuously 
taped with appropriate identification. 

 
(c)   Differential piping materials shall be used to facilitate water system 

identification. 
 
(d)   Hose bibs shall not be used in the recycled water system; approved quick-

couplers or comparable connection devices shall be used instead. 
 
(e) Approved use areas for recycled water service shall also be posted with 

precautionary notices to warn the public per Section 4.2. 
 
(f) When converting an existing water service to recycled water usage, the 

affected water pipelines shall be located and tested in coordination with the 
District and the regulatory agencies to ensure isolation from the drinking 
water system.  All necessary actions will be taken to bring the water 
pipelines into compliance with these Rules and Regulations.  It is not 
necessary to provide identification of all existing buried pipelines unless 
verification of isolation from the drinking water system cannot be confirmed 
by the cross-connection test.  Any existing buried pipelines that are 
uncovered shall be identified prior to use.  The existing water facilities must 
have the approval of the District and regulatory agencies prior to initiation 
of recycled water service. 

 
 3.3.2 Color-Code for Recycled Water Pipes 

 
The use of purple colored pipe, with the words “CAUTION: RECYCLED WATER – DO 
NOT DRINK” and “PELIGRO: AGUA IMPURA—NO BEBER” embossed or integrally 
stamped/marked on the pipe is the preferred method of identification.  As permitted in 
Section 3.3.3, also required is a continuous tape wrap dictating recycled water adherence 
to all purple colored pipe. 
 
The warning should be stamped on opposite sides of the pipe, repeated every three feet. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 83 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 35 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 35 of 65 

 
All connections, temporary and permanent to a recycled water system shall be identified 
in such a manner as to differentiate them from connections to a drinking water system. 
 
When drinking water is being supplied to an area that is also being supplied with recycled 
water, the new drinking water main shall also be identified. Blue-colored tape with the 
words “DRINKING WATER LINE” or “CAUTION: BURIED DRINKING WATER LINE 
BELOW” in English and Spanish shall be fastened to directly to the top of the drinking 
water pipe and run continuously the entire length of the pipe. This tape shall be at least 3 
inches in width.  

 
 3.3.3 Continuous Sleeves 

 
A continuous polyethylene tape wrap shall be installed on all new recycled water pressure 
and/or non-pressure service pipelines.  A purple tape wrap with black lettering stating 
“CAUTION: RECYCLED WATER – DO NOT DRINK” and “PELIGRO: AGUA IMPURA – 
NO BEBER” shall run continuously the entire length of the pipe.  Each section of sleeve 
should overlap the next section a minimum of 24 inches and should be secured at each 
sleeve joint. 

 
 3.3.4 Separation 

 
A. Horizontal 

 
A 10-foot separation of the recycled water pipeline shall be maintained at all times 
between a drinking water pipeline and/or a parallel sanitary sewer or sludge pipeline.  
If a 10-foot separation is not possible, the approval for special construction 
requirements shall be obtained from the District and the State DPH prior to 
commencement of construction.  Common trench construction shall not be 
permitted.  In any event, a horizontal separation less than 4 feet shall not be allowed. 
 
B. Vertical 
 
On new systems, drinking water, recycled water, and sewer lines should be located 
from the ground surface in order of descending quality.  Drinking water shall be 
above recycled water which should be above sewer.  Minimum vertical separation 
should be one (1) foot between top and bottom surfaces of pipes and crossings 
should be made as close to the perpendicular as possible.  Exceptions to this rule 
are as follows: 

 
1. On irrigation systems where intermittently, pressurized recycled water lines 

(laterals) serve sprinkler heads, the drinking water line(s) may be placed under 
the recycled water laterals.  No special construction requirements are 
necessary provided that one (1) foot vertical separation is maintained. 

 
2. On sites using pressurized irrigation laterals with valve-in-head sprinklers, the 

drinking water line(s) may be placed under the recycled water laterals if 
additional protection is provided for the drinking water line.  Common practices 
include sleeving or automatic flow control/shut off devices installed and 
functioning properly on each lateral that crosses a drinking water line. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 84 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 36 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 36 of 65 

 
3. One foot vertical separation is not required when the distance between the 

edges of the two pipelines is 10 feet or greater.  
 

No additional special construction requirements are necessary provided that one (1) 
foot vertical separation is maintained. 

 
C. Groundwater Wells 
 
Application of recycled water within 50 feet of any well used for domestic water 
supply is prohibited, unless approved by the California DPH. No impoundment of 
recycled water shall occur within 100 feet of any drinking water supply or well.  
 

3.4 RECYCLED WATER FOR CONSTRUCTION USE 
 
 When available from the District, recycled water shall be used by contractors for the uses 

specified in Section 3.4.1. The contractor shall make application, pay all required fees 
and obtain a permit for recycled water, as described in Section 2 prior to using recycled 
water for construction.  

 
3.4.1 Allowable Uses 

 
Recycled water used for construction purposes may only be used for soil compaction during 
grading operations, dust control and consolidation and compaction of backfill in trenches for 
recycled water, sanitary sewer, storm drain, gas and electric pipelines.  Recycled water shall 
not be used for water jetting and consolidation or compaction of backfill in trenches for drinking 
water pipelines. 

 
3.4.2 Equipment 

 
Equipment operators shall be instructed about the requirements contained herein and the 
potential health hazards involved with the use of recycled water.  Water trucks, hoses, 
drop tanks, etc. shall be identified as containing recycled water and not suitable for 
drinking water. 
 
Recycled water used for soil compaction and dust control shall not be stored or applied in 
a manner which causes runoff, ponding or windblown spray conditions. If such conditions 
occur, the method of application shall be altered to correct them and prevent any and all 
further ponding and runoff. Control valves on the water distribution vehicles and other 
controlling devices shall be properly employed to prevent the application of recycled water 
outside the approved use area onto surfaces including, but not limited to, sidewalks and 
drainage courses.  

 
Recycled water shall not be introduced into any domestic water piping system.  No 
unprotected connection shall be made between equipment containing recycled water and 
any part of a domestic water system. 
 
Service connections, equipped with recycled water meters and suitable backflow 
protection, for the construction use of recycled water shall be provided by the District at 
locations convenient to the user with approval of the District. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 85 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 37 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 37 of 65 

 
3.5 SUBMITTALS 
 

 Submittal of plans and other documents required by the District as part of the application 
process are detailed in the following documents: 

 
1. Application for Recycled Water Service (Appendix E) 
2. Recycled Water Service On-Site Design and Construction Standards for Non-

Residential Sites (Appendix F) 
3. Recycled Water Service On-Site Design and Construction Standards for 

Residential Dual-Plumbed Homes (Appendix H) 
4. Recycled Water Service On-Site Design, Review and Inspection Procedures 

for Residential Dual Plumbed Homes (Appendix G) 
  
 Plans submitted to the District must meet the requirements of these documents in order 

to receive District approval. 
 
3.6 INSPECTION OF WORK 
 

All work is subject to inspection by the District to ensure compliance with these Rules and 
Regulations (see Appendix G).  Work shall be left open and uncovered until approved by the 
District.  The customer shall cooperate with those making the inspection and assist in the 
performance of the operational tests as required. 

 
3.7 RECORD (AS-BUILT) DRAWINGS 
 

Record drawings shall be prepared and show all changes in the work constituting 
departures from the original drawings. For non-residential sites, these drawings must be 
prepared by a registered engineer or landscape architect and a copy of the irrigation 
control chart must be submitted.  All conceptual or major design changes, including any 
changes that may be affected by the requirements of these standard specifications, shall 
be approved by the District before implementing the change in the construction contract 
and before a request for regular service start-up is made.  Failure to receive prior approval 
may result in initial recycled service delays and/or termination of service. 
 
Aside from regular maintenance and drip systems, any changes or alterations to existing 
on-site facilities, including that which is the result of intentional or unintended damage, 
shall first be reviewed, approved and inspected by the District.  
 
For the purposes of reference, record drawings and control charts, if applicable, shall be 
maintained onsite at all times with copies provided to the District. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 86 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 38 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 38 of 65 

SECTION 4 
 

FACILITIES OPERATION 
 

 
4.1 OFF-SITE RECYCLED WATER FACILITIES 
 

Operation, maintenance and monitoring of all of the District’s off-site recycled water systems 
including, but not limited to, recycled water transmission and distribution mains, service lines, 
valves, connections, storage facilities, and other appurtenances and properties up to and 
including the District’s meter, shall be under the management and control of the District.  No 
other persons except authorized representatives of the District shall have any right to enter 
any portion of the foregoing facilities.  No other persons except authorized representative of 
the District shall have any right to operate, adjust, repair, change, alter, move or relocate any 
portion of the off-site recycled water system. 

 
4.2 ON-SITE RECYCLED WATER FACILITIES 
 
 4.2.1 User’s Responsibilities 
 

The User shall be responsible for the safe and efficient operation, maintenance and 
upkeep of their on-site facilities. The User must attend and complete the Site Supervisor 
Training Program.   

 
The User shall notify the District of any and all updates or proposed changes, modifications 
of additions to the on-site facilities.  Changes shall be approved by the District and shall 
be designed and constructed according to the requirements, conditions and standards set 
forth in these Rules and Regulations and other District requirements. 
 
The User shall comply with any and all applicable Federal, State, and local statutes, 
ordinances, regulations, contracts and requirements prescribed by the District, including 
these Rules and Regulations. 
 
It shall be the responsibility of the User to notify the District of any violations of these Rules 
and Regulations within 24 hours from the time the User becomes aware of the 
circumstances.  Such circumstances include, but are not limited to: 

 

1. Any unplanned or uncontrolled discharge of recycled water resulting from water 
line breaks, malfunctioning control system, or any other circumstances. 

2. Discharge of recycled water outside the approved use area due to runoff or 
windblown spray. 

3. Discovery of a cross connection of a recycled water system with a domestic 
water system. 

4. Discharge of recycled water at a construction site in an unapproved manner or 
in an unapproved area. 

 

 The User shall keep a written log of all system failures and violations including corrective 
action taken.  The log shall be reviewed by the District regularly. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 87 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 39 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 39 of 65 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 88 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 40 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 40 of 65 

4.2.2  Designation/Responsibility of the Recycled Water Supervisor (On-Site Supervisor) 
 
All recycled water Users shall designate a Recycled Water Site Supervisor.  This Site 
Supervisor must and attended and completed the District’s Site Supervisor Training 
Program.  At dual-plumbed residential use sites, the homeowner shall be the on-site 
supervisor and must also attend and complete the District’s Site Supervisor Training 
Program.  The Recycled Water Site Supervisor shall be a person accepted and approved 
by the District to operate and maintain the on-site facilities and irrigation systems, and to 
assume the responsibilities outlined below. 
 
The District shall require that the designated Recycled Water Supervisor obtain instruction 
in the use of recycled water, such instruction being provided or approved by the District. 
The District shall conduct a regular monthly scheduled Recycled Water Site Supervisor 
Training Program to provide required information for those who design, install, maintain 
and use recycled water.  
 
The Recycled Water Site Supervisor shall be the contact person for the User in all matters 
between the User and the District concerning the operation of the onsite system and the 
use of recycled water. It shall be the responsibility of the User to notify the District 
whenever a change of the Recycled Water Site Supervisor occurs.  Subsequently, the 
User shall be responsible to obtain the District’s acceptance and approval of any newly 
designated supervisor, through attendance and completion of the District’s Site Supervisor 
Training Program.  The Recycled Water Site Supervisor will have the following 
responsibilities: 

 
a. To oversee recycled water service and maintain onsite facilities. 
 
b. To ensure that all operations personnel are trained and familiarized with the use 

of recycled water, including all pertinent information contained in these Rules and 
Regulations and those applicable portions of the California Code of Regulations. 

 
c. To furnish operations personnel with operating instructions, maintenance 

instructions, controller charts, and record drawings to ensure proper operation in 
accordance with the facilities design and these Rules and Regulations and all 
applicable permits. 

 
d. To operate and control the customer’s recycled water system in order to prevent 

direct human consumption of recycled water and to control and prevent run-off. 
 

e. To carry out ongoing regular maintenance and upkeep to ensure the continued 
operation of all system elements within the requirements of these Rules and 
Regulations. 

 
f. To prevent cross-connections to drinking water systems, and also to protect the 

recycled water system from contamination from cross-connections to other 
sources. 
 

g. To ensure that maintenance and inspection of backflow prevention assemblies is 
done regularly on an annual basis as per requirements of regulatory agencies, or 
more often in those instances where successive inspections indicate repeated 
failures. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 89 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 41 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 41 of 65 

 
h. To report to the District any and all failures in the on-site facilities whether or not 

such failures may result in violations. 
 

i. In the event of a cross-connection to the drinking water system, the customer shall 
immediately shutoff the main recycled water supply valve and depressurize the 
recycled water system to prevent further mixing with the drinking supply and shall 
immediately advise the District of the occurrence of the cross-connection within 24 
hours of discovery.  The local and State health officers shall be immediately 
advised by the District so that appropriate measures may be taken to control any 
contamination or pollution. 

 
4.2.3  Operation and Control of the On-Site Recycled Water System 
 
The goal is to minimize overspray and runoff and confine recycled water to the use area.  
In addition, to the extent possible, the operation of a spray irrigation system shall be during 
periods, of minimal public use of the approved area.  Such periods of operation shall 
remain within 9 P.M. and 6 A.M. unless otherwise approved by the District. Drip irrigation 
is allowable at any time. The Recycled Water Site Supervisor must be present if irrigation 
takes place when public contact may occur.  
 
Operation and control measures of onsite recycled water systems shall include, but not 
limited to, the following: 
 
1. On-site recycled water facilities shall be operated in such a manner to prevent or 

control surface flows or windblown sprays of recycled water across boundary lines, or 
into areas not approved for recycled water use. 

 
2. The system design shall avoid spray patterns that tend to accumulate recycled water 

to produce ponding and/or run-off on public rights-of-way or adjoining areas not 
approved for recycled water use. 
 

3. It is not practical to completely eliminate overspray or runoff.  Excessive irrigation with 
recycled water which results in excessive runoff of recycled water, or continued 
irrigation of recycled water during periods of rain is prohibited. 

 
4.2.4  Residential Dual-Plumbed Use Sites 
 
In addition to meeting the requirements of this Section, homeowners and/or those who 
operate their irrigation systems must meet the requirements of the District’s “Recycled 
Water Service Use Guidelines for Residential Dual-Plumbed Homes” (Appendix I). 

 
4.3 WARNING SIGNS 
 
 Warning signs are required to inform the public that recycled water is being used.  Signs 

shall be required at site entrances, any customer field office, maintenance building, or 
common areas within the approved use area, and at other locations on-site as deemed 
appropriate by the District and other regulatory agencies. Warning notices and labels shall 
be posted on designated facilities such as controller panels, quick couplers, or blowoff 
valves on trucks, and temporary construction facilities.  Signs shall be no less than 4 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 90 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 42 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 42 of 65 

inches by 8 inches, shall have the wording “CAUTION: RECYCLED WATER – DO NOT 
DRINK” and “PELIGRO: AGUA IMPURA—NO BEBER” and shall be in compliance with 
California DPH regulations.  It shall be the responsibility of the Recycled Water Site 
Supervisor to ensure the required bilingual postings in English and Spanish are installed 
and maintained, and so placed that they can be readily seen by all personnel or public 
utilizing the facilities.  

 
 All water hazards containing recycled water shall be posted with signs. All water outlets 

shall be posted as “drinking” or “recycled”, as applicable and appropriate.  
 
4.4 MONITORING AND INSPECTION 
 

The District, California DPH, and/or the Regional Water Quality Control Board, or authorized 
representatives of any of these agencies shall have authority to monitor and inspect the entire 
recycled water system including both on-site and off-site facilities.  The District shall conduct 
monitoring programs, as it deems necessary, to ensure that User’s recycled water facilities 
are being operated in accordance with these Rules and Regulations, including the provision 
that cross-connections between drinking water facilities and the recycled water facilities do 
not exist.  In carrying out these functions the District, the State DPH, and/or the Regional 
Water Quality Control Board, or authorized representatives of any of these agencies shall 
have the right to enter any customer’s premises during reasonable hours upon presentation 
of proper credentials.  Reasonable hours shall include hours when irrigation is being 
performed to ascertain whether the user is complying with the District’s Rules and Regulations 
for Recycled Water.  The customer shall indemnify and hold the District harmless for any 
damage, loss, or injury alleged to have been caused by District personnel while inspecting 
on-site facilities, except where the District’s sole negligence is duly established. 

 

Each time there is a change of either owner or User of any use site, the owner or User shall 
notify the District immediately.  The District will then reassess the level of backflow protection 
required and conduct a cross connection test.  Also, any alterations to existing on-site facilities 
that may affect required protection levels must be reported immediately to the District. 

 
4.5 METERS 
 
 4.5.1 Meter Test 
 
 If the recycled water meter fails to register during any period or is known to register 

inaccurately, the User shall be charged with an average daily usage based on similar 
seasonal times when the meter was registering correctly, or by other means determined 
by the District’s General Manager. Any User may demand that the meter, through which 
recycled water is being furnished, be examined and tested by the District for the purpose 
of ascertaining whether or not it is correctly registering the amount of recycled water being 
delivered through it. Such demand shall be in writing to the General Manager, or his 
designee, and shall be accompanied by a deposit equal to the charge for testing such 
meter as established from time to time by the District. 

 
 Upon receipt of such demand and deposit, the District will have the meter examined and 

tested. If upon such test the meter shall be found to register over three percent (3%) more 
water than actually passes through it, the meter shall be properly adjusted or an accurate 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 91 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 43 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 43 of 65 

meter substituted. The deposit shall be returned and the recycled water bill for the current 
month and for such previous billing periods, not exceeding six (6) months, or for a period 
it appears the meter was in error, as determined by the District, will be adjusted 
proportionately.  If the meter should be found to register not more than three percent (3%) 
more than actually passes through it, the deposit shall be retained by the District as the 
expense of making the test. 

 
 4.5.2 Non-Registering Meters 
 
 If a meter is found to be not registering, the charges for service shall be based on the 

estimated recycled water consumption.  Such estimates shall be made from previous 
consumption for a comparable period or by such other method as is determined by the 
District’s General Manager, or his designee, in his sole discretion, and its decision shall 
be final. 

 
 4.5.3 Meter Exchange 
 
 The District reserves the right to exchange recycled water meters for any reason at the 

discretion of the General Manager. 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 92 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 44 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 44 of 65 

SECTION 5 
 

RECYCLED WATER SERVICE RATES AND BILLING 
 
 

5.1 RATES, FEES AND CHARGES 
 

All rates and fees are set by the District’s Board of Directors.  The current rate and fee 
schedule is available from the District.  
 
Applicants for recycled water service shall pay their fair share for the construction of 
facilities needed to deliver recycled water to the applicant’s property.  All fees and 
estimated construction costs shall be paid prior to construction. 

 
5.1.1 Temporary Service 

 
The recycled water rate for all water sold through temporary recycled water meters shall 
be the same as the construction recycled water rate. The charges for water sold through 
temporary recycled water meters shall be billed and paid on a monthly basis. 

 
5.1.2 Service Outside of District 

 
 The rate for recycled water used on land or property located entirely outside of the District 

shall be the same rate as the rate for water sold through temporary meters unless the 
recycled water agreement approved by the Board establishes a rate, in which case the 
rate set forth in the agreement shall apply. 

 
 The rate for water used on land or property located both inside and outside the District 

shall be apportioned according to the place of use insofar as the amounts used on 
properties within and outside of the District. 

 
 5.1.3 Change of Rates, Fees or Charges 
 

The District’s Board of Directors shall from time-to-time by Resolution, establish rates, 

fees and charges for recycled water and other service provided by the District. The 

District reserves the right to change the schedule of recycled water rates, 

service charges and any other charges, deposits, or fees at any time.  These 

changes are subject to the terms of any existing recycled water service permits 

(and/or agreements) and will be made by appropriate action of the District. 
 
5.2 CUSTOMER BILLING PROCEDURES  
 
 5.2.1 Rates, Fees and Charges 
 

Recycled water rates, fees and charges shall begin when a recycled water service connection 
is installed and the meter is set or an existing service is requested to be turned on, unless the 
recycled water is ordered to be left shut off when the service connection is ordered or installed. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 93 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 45 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 45 of 65 

Bills and charges shall be deemed to have been presented upon having been deposited in 
the United States mail, postage pre-paid and addressed to the User, as reflected in the 
District’s records.  

 
 5.2.2 Liability of Property Owner for Recycled Water Used 
 

The property owner shall be held liable for recycled water used until the District is notified 
in writing to discontinue service or to transfer the account to another property owner.  The 
property owner remains responsible for all charges owed to the District whether or not the 
property owner actually lives on the premises, and whether or not the property owner is 
the User. 

 
5.2.3 Liens for Unpaid Bills 

 
All unpaid bills will be made a lien against the property pursuant to these Rules and 
Regulations, and the California Water Code. 
 
5.2.4 Billing Period 

 
 The regular billing period will be on a monthly basis.  
 

5.2.5 Meter Reading 
 
 Drinking water and recycled water meters will be read as nearly as possible on the same 

day of each month and will be billed in the same billing period or cycle. 
  

5.2.6 Billing of Separate Meters Not Combined 
 

Separate bills may be rendered for each meter installation.  The District may, for its own 
convenience, consider each register of compound meters as a separate service and bill 
each as provided for herein. 
 
5.2.7 Opening and Closing Bills 
 
Opening and closing bills for less than the normal billing period shall be prorated as to 
recycled water usage only.  Closing bills may be estimated by the District for the final 
period as an expediency to permit the User to pay the closing bill at the time service is 
discontinued. 
 
5.2.8 Payment of Bills 

 
Bills for recycled water service shall be rendered at the end of each billing period and are 
due and payable prior to the beginning of the next billing period. The final payment date 
shall be due within thirty (30) calendar days following the mailing of the bill. If full payment 
is not received at the business office of the District on or before the final payment date, 
the bill shall become past due and delinquent. 

 
5.2.9 Delinquent Bills 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 94 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 46 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 46 of 65 

Accounts remaining unpaid at the next billing date are delinquent and subject to a 
delinquency charge.  Accounts (bills) containing past due amounts and delinquency 
charges are subject to turnoff if not paid within thirty (30) days of the mailing or 
presentation of the bill.  When notice of turnoff is provided at the end of the thirty (30) day 
period, the entire balance due must be paid within five (5) days of presentation or service 
will be discontinued. Refer to Section 5.4 “Disconnection for Nonpayment” for additional 
information. 

 
5.2.10 Voluntary Temporary Disconnect 

 
A User may request recycled water service be disconnected upon payment of a 
disconnect fee. This relieves the User of responsibility for daily minimum charges. 
Services disconnected hereunder shall be continued upon payment of a reconnect fee. 

 
5.2.11 Legal Action and Attorney’s Fees 

 
All unpaid rates, fees and charges and penalties herein provided may be collected by legal 
action commenced in a court of appropriate jurisdiction.  In any legal action filed under or 
related to these Rules and Regulations, with the exception of any action filed to challenge 
the validity of any or all of these Rules and Regulations, the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to recovery its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, including prejudgment 
interest, if appropriate, at 10% per annum.   

 
5.2.12 Upon Vacating Premises 

 
Users desiring to discontinue service should so notify the District five (5) days prior to 
vacating the premises. Unless discontinuance of service is ordered, the User shall be 
liable for ongoing charges whether or not any recycled water is used, up until the time of 
the requested discontinuance of service. 

 
5.2.13 Turn-On and Turn-Off Services 

 
A User may request that service be discontinued either temporarily or permanently. Such 
a request must be made by giving at least two (2) working days advance notice to the 
District. If such a notice is not given, the User will be billed for service until one (1) working 
day after the District acquires actual knowledge that the customer has vacated premises 
or otherwise discontinued service.  
 
No charge shall be made for a turn-on or turn-off service at the meter, either for emergency 
purposes or at the request of the User for maintenance.  The District shall, upon request 
day or night, and without charge, shut off the supply of recycled water for emergency 
purposes at the angle meter stop.  
 

5.3 COMPLAINTS AND DISPUTED BILLS 
 

5.3.1 Meet and Confer 
 
 Should a User have a complaint with regard to recycled water service, these Rules and 

Regulations, or any District resolution, or ordinance, or dispute the accuracy of a bill for 
recycled water service or other charges, for any reason whatsoever, the User shall have 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 95 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 47 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 47 of 65 

an opportunity to meet and confer with the General Manager, or his designee, to discuss 
the dispute and present any evidence the User has to support his/her/its position. 

 
5.3.2 Arrangement of Meeting 

 
 To arrange such a meeting the User shall contact the District office, either in writing or by 

telephone, during normal business hours. 
 

5.3.3 Presentation of Evidence 
 
 The User may be accompanied by a friend, attorney or other representative to meet with 

the General Manager, or his designee, and may present any evidence they may have to 
support his/her/its position. 

 
 5.3.4 Discontinuance of Service 
 
 Except for an emergency implicating public health concerns, no recycled water or other 

service shall be discontinued pending the final resolution of a dispute. 
 
5.4 DISCONNECTION FOR NONPAYMENT 

 
 Recycled water service shall be discontinued without further notice if payment for recycled 

water service is not made by the delinquent date.  At least forty-eight (48) hours prior to 
termination, the District will make a reasonable attempt to notify the resident of the affected 
property by telephone or by personal contact. 

 
 5.4.1 Complaint Procedures for Disconnection 
  
 Service disconnection for non-payment of bills or for violation of any of these Rules and 

Regulations, or any District ordinance or resolution is subject to the complaint procedures 
specified in Section 5.3 herein. 

 
 5.4.2 Lien against Property for Non-Payment 
 
 Any and all bills rendered for the use of water or recycled water service shall be deemed 

to be an indebtedness against the real property served with recycled water and, at the 
option of the District, unpaid recycled water bills may become a lien against that real 
property. 

 
 5.4.3 Service Charges for Violations 
 
 If recycled water service is discontinued for violation of any of the District's rules, 

regulations, resolutions or ordinances, service shall not be reinstituted until the violations 
have been corrected and all applicable rates, fees and charges have been paid. 

 
 5.4.4 Partial Payments 
 
 A partial payment of a delinquent account balance may be accepted and credited to a 

User's account, but such partial payment shall not be cause for removing the account from 
a delinquent status and shall not preclude the meter from being turned off for delinquency. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 96 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 48 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 48 of 65 

 5.4.5 Authorization for Continuance of Service for Delinquent Accounts 
 
 The General Manager, or his designee, may authorize continuation of service to a 

delinquent account if financial arrangements satisfactory to the General Manager have 
been established. 

 
5.5 ADDING DELINQUENT CHARGES TO TAX ROLL 

 
 5.5.1 Report of Delinquent and Unpaid Charges 
 
 A report of delinquent and unpaid charges for recycled water and other services which 

remain unpaid and delinquent for sixty (60) days or more shall be prepared and submitted 
to the Board for consideration as tax liens.  The unpaid and delinquent charges listed in 
said report for each parcel of property shall be fixed at the amount listed in said report. 

 
 5.5.2 Adoption and Filing of Report 
 
 The General Manager or designee shall file with the County Assessor of the County of 

San Bernardino and the Board of Supervisors of the County of San Bernardino, or with 
the same of the County of Riverside as applicable, in the time and manner specified by 
the County Assessor and Board of Supervisors, a copy of such written report with a 
statement endorsed thereon over the signature of the General Manager or designee, that 
such a report has been adopted and approved by the Board of Directors and that the 
County Assessor shall enter the amount of such charges against the respective lots or 
parcels of land as they appear on the current assessment roll. 

 
 5.5.3 Collection of Delinquent and Unpaid Charges 
 
 The County Assessor shall include the amount of charges on bills for taxes levied against 

their respective lots and parcels of land and thereafter, the amount of such unpaid and 
delinquent charges shall be collected at the same time and in the same manner by the 
same person, as together with and not separately from, the general taxes, if any, for the 
District, and shall be delinquent at the same time and thereafter be subject to the same 
delinquency penalties. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 97 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 49 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 49 of 65 

 
 
 
 
 

Appendix A 
 
 

Definitions 
 
 
 

Please consult the latest version of this document 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 98 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 50 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 50 of 65 

APPENDIX A 
 

Definitions 
 
 

AFY:  Acre-feet per year 
 
AGRICULTURAL USE:  Recycled water used for the watering of field and nursery crops, row 
crops, trees and vines, and crops or pastures for the feeding of fowl and livestock.  
 
AGRICULTURAL USER:  Any person engaged in irrigation of food, fodder, fiber, seed, or nursery 
crops for commercial purposes. 
 
AIR-GAP SEPARATION:  A physical vertical separation between the free flowing discharge end 
of a water supply pipeline and an open or non-pressurized receiving vessel. An air gap separation 
shall meet the requirements of Section 603.1.2 of the Uniform Plumbing Code. 
 
ANSI:  American National Standards Institute 
 
APPLICANT:  Shall mean the person making application hereunder and shall be the owner of 
the premises involved, or his authorized agents, so authorized in writing to the District, or a 
licensed plumber or contractor.  An approved applicant becomes a user. 
 
APPLICATION RATE:  The rate at which recycled water is applied to a use area. 
 
APPROVED BACKFLOW PREVENTER:  A device installed to protect the drinking water supply 
from contamination by recycled water and approved by the State of California and San Bernardino 
or Riverside County, if applicable. 
 
APPROVED USE:  An application of recycled water in a manner and in compliance with any and 
all applicable District and Regulatory Agency requirements. 
 
APPROVED USE AREA:  A site with well-defined boundaries, designated in a user agreement 
issued by Yucaipa Valley Water District to receive recycled water for an approved use and 
acknowledged by any and all applicable Regulatory Agencies. 
 
ARTIFICIAL LAKE: A human-made lake, pond, lagoon, or other body of water that is used wholly 
or partly for landscape, scenic, or non-contact recreational purposes. 
 
AS-BUILT DRAWINGS:  Engineered drawings that depict the completed facilities as constructed 
or modified. 
 
ASTM:  American Society for Testing Materials 
 
AUTOMATIC SYSTEM:  Automatic controllers, timers, valves, and associated equipment used 
to program irrigation systems for the application of recycled water. 
 
AUXILIARY WATER SUPPLY:  Any source of water that has not been approved by the State 
Department of Public Health for domestic use in the District’s water system that is either used or 
equipped to be used, as a water supply and located on, or piped to, the premises of a water user. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 99 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 51 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 51 of 65 

The term “equipped” in this definition means that appurtenances such as active or inactive wells, 
connections to other drinking water suppliers, pumps, power supply, intakes, suction lines, 
pipelines, connection fitting, or storage tanks are in place and readily available for use.  
 
AWWA:  American Water Works Association 
 
BACKFLOW:  A flow condition, caused by a differential in pressure, that causes the flow of water 
or other liquids, gases, mixtures or substances into the distribution pipelines of a water supply 
from any source or sources other than an approved water supply source.  Back-siphonage is one 
cause of backflow.  Back pressure is another cause. 
 
BOARD:  Shall mean the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District. 
 
BRINE:  A saline solution resulting from the operation of a regenerative type water softener, 
evaporative cooling device, or other source.  Brine, for purposes of this document, shall be defined 
as any wastewater with a total dissolved solids (TDS) content exceeding the limits specified in 
Yucaipa Valley Water District "Regulations for Sewer Connections and Use".  
 
CCR: The current California Code of Regulations 
 
CHECK VALVE:  A check valve that seats readily and completely. It must be carefully machined 
to have free moving parts and assure water tightness. The face of the closure element and valve 
seat must be bronze or other non-corrodible material that will seat tightly under all prevailing 
conditions of field use.  Pins and bushings shall be of bronze or other non-corrodible, non-sticking 
material. The closure element (e.g. clapper) shall be internally weighted or otherwise internally 
equipped to promote rapid and positive closure in all sizes where this feature is obtainable.   
 
CODE:  The current California Code of Regulations, California Water Code and/or California 
Health and Safety Code. 
 
COMMERCIAL USE:  Any building for office or commercial uses with water requirements which 
include, but are not limited to, landscape irrigation, toilets, sewer trap priming, urinals and 
decorative fountains. 
 
COMMODITY CHARGE:  A charge imposed by the District for all recycled water used, whether 
such water use is estimated or is actually metered. 
 
CONNECTION:  The pipeline and appurtenant facilities such as the angle meter stop, meter and 
meter box, all used to extend recycled water service from the mainline to the premises, the laying 
thereof and the tapping of the main.  Where services are divided at the curb or property line to 
serve several customers, each such branch service shall be deemed a separate service. 
 
CONNECTION FEE:  A fee imposed by the District for obtaining recycled water service from the 
District by means of its recycled water facilities. 
 
CONSTRUCTION USE:  An approved use of recycled water to support construction activities 
such as soil compaction and dust control during grading. 
 
CONSTRUCTION DEPOSIT:  Deposit placed with the District to cover the estimated cost of 
recycled water facilities to be installed by the District for a customer. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 100 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 52 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 52 of 65 

CONTRACTOR:  A person, persons or firm entering into a legal agreement with the District or 
applicant for the performance of work on any portion of facilities subject to these Regulations. 
 
COST: The cost of labor, materials, transportation, supervision, engineering and all other 
necessary expenses. 
 
COUNTY:  The County of San Bernardino, California, or the County of Riverside, California, as 
applicable. 
 
CROSS-CONNECTION:  Any actual or unprotected connection or structural arrangement 
between the District’s water system, or a piping system connected to the District’s system and 
located on the premises of a water user, and any source or distribution system containing liquid, 
gas, or other substances not from the District’s water system or a water system that is approved 
for use in the District’s system.  
 
CUSTOMER:  Any person, group, firm, partnership, corporation, association, or agency that 
legally receives recycled water service from the District. 
 
CUSTOMER'S SERVICE VALVE:  A valve independent of the District's facilities located in the 
customer's piping as close to the meter as practicable, the operation of which will control the entire 
water supply from the meter. 
 
DEVELOPER:  Shall mean any person who shall construct or develop any property, which may 
require recycled water service from the District. 
 
DESIGN AREA:  A site with well-defined boundaries, proposed to receive recycled water for an 
approved use, as delineated in the Application for Recycled Water Service. 
 
DPH:  State of California Department of Public Health 
 
DIRECT BENEFICIAL USE:  The use of recycled water, which has been transported from the 
point of production to the point of use without an intervening discharge to waters of the State. 
 
DISCHARGE:  Any release or distribution of recycled water, or release of wastes to a sewerage 
system.  
 
DISTRICT:  Yucaipa Valley Water District staff and Board of Directors. 
 
DISTRICT RECYCLED WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM:  Individually or collectively, any 
recycled water facility or facilities financed, constructed and dedicated to the District by an 
applicant, developer, or customer or financed and constructed by the District. 
 
DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY:  An assembly of at least two independently-acting, 
internally loaded approved check valves including tightly closing shut-off valves upstream and 
downstream of the check valve assembly and suitable leak-detector drains plus connections 
available for testing the water tightness of each check valve. The assembly shall meet AWWA 
Standard C510-97 “Double Check Valve Backflow Prevention Assembly” and be approved 
through laboratory and field evaluation tests. 
 
DUAL-PLUMBED SYSTEM: A system that utilizes separate piping systems for recycled and/or 
recycled water and drinking water either (1) within a facility to serve plumbing outlets (excluding 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 101 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 53 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 53 of 65 

fire suppression systems) within a building or (2) outdoor landscape irrigation at individual 
residences.  
 
DUAL-SOURCED OR MULTIPLE WATER SYSTEMS:  Systems that provide two or more grades 
of water to the same area, one drinking and the others recycled.  The quality, quantity, reliability 
and pressure available from each system vary with the sources and intended uses for each grade 
of water. 
 
ECONOMICALLY FEASIBLE:  Customer costs of recycled water facilities that are projected to 
be offset by long-term water cost savings or construction of facilities, as determined by the District, 
to the point of economic viability. 
 
EFFLUENT:  Treated wastewater discharged from a wastewater treatment plant. 
 
ENGINEER:  The Engineer of Yucaipa Valley Water District or other person designated by the 
General Manager. 
 
ENGINEER’S REPORT OR TITLE 22 ENGINEERING REPORT:  A report, required by Section 
60324 of Title 22 of the CCR prior to using recycled water, prepared by a properly qualified 
engineer registered in California and experienced in the field of wastewater treatment, which 
contains a description or the design of the proposed reclamation system. The report shall clearly 
indicate the means for compliance with Title 22 regulations and any other features specified by 
the regulatory agency.  
 
GENERAL MANAGER:  The General Manager of the Yucaipa Valley Water District. 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC:  Any person(s) at large who may come in contact with facilities and/or areas 
where recycled water is approved for use. 
 
GOVERNING BODY:  The Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District. 
 
GRAYWATER:  Untreated wastewater, which has not been contaminated by any toilet discharge, 
has not been affected by infectious, contaminated or unhealthy bodily wastes and which does not 
present a threat from contamination by unhealthful processing, manufacturing, or operating 
wastes. Graywater includes wastewater from bathtubs, showers, bathroom washbasins, clothes 
washing machines, and laundry tubs, but does not include wastewater from kitchen sinks or 
dishwashers.  
 
GREENBELT AREAS:  A greenbelt area includes, but is not limited to, parkways, parks, golf 
courses, cemeteries, and landscaping within or surrounding a community. 
 
1000 GALLONS: A common unit of water volume measurement. 
 
HUMAN CONSUMPTION: Per California Health and Safety Code Section 116275(e), human 
consumption is defined as drinking, bathing or showering, hand washing, or oral hygiene. 
Recycled water and recycled water are not permitted for these purposes. 
 
INDUSTRIAL PROCESS WATER:  Water for any industrial facility with requirements, which 
include, but are not limited to, rinsing, washing, cooling, circulation, or construction, including any 
facility regulated by the industrial waste discharge ordinance of the District. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 102 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 54 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 54 of 65 

INDUSTRIAL USE:  Water used for industrial processes, such as cooling, flushing or construction 
and other related uses. 
 
INFILTRATION RATE:  The quantity of water that can enter the soil in a specified time interval. 
 
INSPECTOR:  Shall mean the person who shall perform the work of inspecting recycled water 
and/or drinking water facilities under the jurisdiction or control of the District. 
 
INSTALLER:  A person(s) or firm performing work necessary to construct or install equipment or 
facilities subject to these Regulations. 
 
LANDSCAPE IMPOUNDMENT:  An impoundment in which recycled water or recycled water is 
stored or used for aesthetic enjoyment or landscape irrigation, or which otherwise serves a similar 
function and is not intended to include public contact or ingestion.   
 
LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION SYSTEM:  All equipment and materials used for applying irrigation 
water to the use area from the service connection, including all piping, valves, sprinkler heads, 
controllers and appurtenances. 
 
LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION USE:  Recycled water used for the propagation and maintenance of 
trees, shrubs, ground cover and turf.  This plant material is intended for erosion control and 
aesthetic value, not for resale/profit purposes. 
 
LESSEE:  Person leasing property from the property owner. 
 
LESSOR:  Property owner leasing property to a lessee. 
 
MAIN:  Shall mean a water line in a street, highway, alley or easement used for public and private 
fire protection and for the general distribution of water. 
 
RECYCLED USE:  Any water use not requiring drinking water. 
 
RECYCLED WATER:  Water available from the District's recycled water facilities, which may 
include, but is not limited to, a combination of tertiary disinfected treated wastewater, intercepted 
surface and subsurface stream flows, groundwater, and microfiltration and nanofiltration 
concentrate from the District’s drinking water treatment plant. This water is not acceptable for 
human consumption. 
 
RECYCLED WATER SERVICE:  Water service and facilities rendered for non-domestic, 
commercial and industrial purposes on a permanent basis, and the recycled water available. 
 
RECYCLED WATER USE PERMIT (USE PERMIT):  The processed and approved application 
for, and agreement with, the District for recycled water service, including all applicable Regulatory 
Agency requirements. 
 
OFF-SITE FACILITIES:  Existing or proposed facilities under the control of the District, or other 
public agency, from the source of supply to the point of connection with the customer's on-site 
facilities, normally up to and including District's meter and the meter box. 
 
ON-SITE FACILITIES:  Existing or proposed facilities on the property being served under the 
control of the customer, normally downstream of the District's meter (i.e., irrigation system). 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 103 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 55 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 55 of 65 

 
ON-SITE RECYCLED WATER SUPERVISOR (ON-SITE SUPERVISOR):  A qualified person 
designated as a recycled (recycled) water customer and approved by the District.  This person 
shall be knowledgeable in the construction and operation of recycled water and irrigation systems 
and in the application of the Federal, State and local guidelines, criteria, standards, and rules and 
regulations governing the use of recycled and recycled water. 
 
OPERATIONS PERSONNEL:  Any employee of a customer, whether permanent or temporary, 
or any contracted worker whose regular or assigned work involves the supervision, operation or 
maintenance of equipment on any portion of onsite facilities using recycled water. 
 
OPERATOR: A person(s) or firm who, by entering into an agreement with a user, is responsible 
for operating onsite facilities. 
 
OWNER:  The person owning in fee title, or in whose name the legal title to the property appears, 
by deed duly recorded in the County Recorder's office, or the person in possession of the property 
or buildings under claim of, or exercising acts of ownership over same for himself, or as executor, 
administrator, guardian or trustee of the owner. 
 
PERMIT:  Any written authorization required pursuant to this or any other regulation of the District. 
 
PERSON:  Any human being, individual, firm, company, partnership, association and private or 
public or municipal corporation, the United States of America, the State of California. 
 
POC:  Point of connection. 
 
PONDING:  Retention of piped water on the surface of the ground or man-made surface for a 
period of time following the cessation of an approved recycled water use activity such that 
potential hazard to the public health may result. 
 
DRINKING WATER:  Water, which conforms to the latest Federal, State and local drinking water 
standards. 
 
PREMISES:  A lot or parcel of real property under one ownership, except where there are well 
defined boundaries or partitions such as fences, hedges or other restrictions preventing the 
common use of the property by several tenants, in which case each portion shall be deemed 
separate premises.  Apartment houses and office buildings may be classified as single premises. 
 
PRESSURE VACUUM BREAKER ASSEMBLY (PVB): The combination of an independently-
acting, internally-loaded check valve and an independently-acting loaded air inlet valve located 
on its discharge side, with test stops and shutoff valves attached at each end of the combination. 
The assembly shall meet AWWA Standard C512-99 “Air Release, Air/Vacuum, and Combination 
Air Valves for Waterworks Service” and be approved through laboratory and field evaluation tests.  
 
PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE:  Shall mean water service and facilities for building 
sprinkler systems, hydrants, hose reels and other facilities installed on private property for fire 
protection and the water available. 
 
PROPERTY OWNER (OWNER):  The holder of legal title to a property. 
 
PSI:  Pounds per square inch.  The most common unit of pressure measurement. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 104 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 56 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 56 of 65 

 
PUBLIC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE:  Shall mean the service and facilities of the entire water 
supply, storage and distribution system of the District, including the fire hydrants affixed thereto, 
and the water available for fire protection, excepting house service connections and 
appurtenances thereto. 
 
PURVEYOR:  An agency that supplies drinking or recycled water.  The Yucaipa Valley Water 
District is a purveyor. 
 
RECYCLED WATER:  As defined in Title 22, Division 4, Chapter 3, of the California Code of 
Regulations, means water which, as a result of treatment of wastewater, is suitable for direct 
beneficial use or a controlled use that otherwise would not occur; such treatment of wastewater 
having been accomplished in accordance with the criteria, including the level of constituents in 
combination with the means for assurance of reliability, as set forth in the California Code of 
Regulations. The District may also deliver water available from the District's recycled water 
facilities through its recycled water system, which may include, but is not limited to, a combination 
of tertiary disinfected wastewater, intercepted surface and subsurface stream flows, groundwater 
and microfiltration and nanofiltration concentrate from the District’s Water Filtration Facility.   
 
RECYCLED WATER AGREEMENT:  A contract between the District and the customer which 
must be executed as a condition for obtaining recycled (recycled) water service. 
 
RECYCLED WATER FACILITIES:  Facilities used in the treatment, storage, pumping and 
conveyance of recycled water. 
 
RECREATIONAL IMPOUNDMENT:  A body of recycled or recycled water used for recreational 
activities including, but not limited to, fishing, boating, and/or swimming. Allowable uses will 
depend on treatment level of the recycled water. 
 
REGULAR WATER SERVICE:  Water service and facilities rendered for normal domestic, 
commercial and industrial purposes on a permanent basis, and the water available therefore. 
 
REGULATORY AGENCY:  Individually, or in concert, the Federal EPA, the State Water 
Resources Control Board, the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, the State 
Department of Health, the San Bernardino County Health Department, the Riverside County 
Health Department, Department of Fish and Game, U.S. Army Corp. of Engineers, Riverside 
County Flood Control, Yucaipa Valley Water District, or any other regulatory agency having 
jurisdiction. 
 
REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT:  An agreement for future limited reimbursement by the 
District for the cost of portions of recycled water facilities which a developer, customer, applicant, 
or other may be required to install which are necessary and beneficial to a subsequent 
development, or customer. 
 
RESIDENTIAL:  Any single family unit, any duplex or triple family unit, apartment or condominium 
not requiring licensing for occupancy and operation. 
 
REDUCED PRESSURE PRINCIPLE ASSEMBLY (RPPA):  A backflow preventer incorporating 
not less than two independently-acting, internally-loaded check valves with an automatically 
operated differential-pressure relief valve located between the two check valves, a tightly closing 
shut-off valve located upstream and downstream of the check valve assembly and equipped with 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 105 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 57 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 57 of 65 

necessary test stops for field testing. The assembly shall meet AWWA Standard C511-97 
“Reduced-Pressure Principle Backflow Prevention Assembly” and be approved through 
laboratory and field evaluation tests.  
 
RULES AND REGULATIONS:  All applicable rules and regulations issued by appropriate 
regulatory agencies, including “Yucaipa Valley Water District Rules and Regulations for Water 
Service”, and “Yucaipa Valley Water District Rules and Regulations for Sewer Connections and 
Use”, as periodically amended. 
 
RUN-OFF:  Unintentional flow of water along either natural or manmade surfaces of the ground 
off of the designated use area. 
 
RWQCB:  Regional Water Quality Control Board. 
 
SECRETARY:  The Secretary to the Board of Directors. 
 
SERVICE:  The delivery of recycled water to a customer. 
 
SERVICE CONNECTION:  The District's facilities between the District's recycled water 
distribution system and the customer's recycled water service valve, including, but not limited to, 
the meter, meter box, valves and piping equipment. 
 
SERVICE ANGLE METER STOP:  A valve independent of the District's facilities located in the 
customer's piping as close to the meter as practicable, the operation of which will control the entire 
water supply from the meter. 
 
SERVICE CONNECTION FEE:  A charge imposed by and paid to the District to cover the 
installation costs of recycled water facilities to be paid for by the customer/applicant as a condition 
prior to service. 
 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS:  "Standard Specifications for Construction of Water, Sewer and 
Recycled Water Facilities" of Yucaipa Valley Water District, as amended. 
 
SURCHARGE:  A charge imposed by the District for the provision of special service not normally 
provided by the District. 
 
SYSTEM OPERATOR:  On-site supervisor, or designee responsible for operation and 
maintenance of customer's system in conformance with this Ordinance. 
 
TEMPORARY WATER SERVICE:  Water service and facilities rendered for construction work 
and other uses of limited duration, and the recycled water available. 
 
TERTIARY EFFLUENT:  Disinfected Tertiary-2.2 Recycled Water as defined in Title 22, Division 
4, Chapter 3, of the California Code of Regulations, Section 60301.230. 
 
TITLE 22:  Title 22, Division 4, Chapter 3, of the California Code of Regulations. 
 
UNAUTHORIZED DISCHARGE:  Any release of recycled or recycled water that violates the 
provisions of this Ordinance or any applicable Federal, State, District, or local statutes, 
regulations, ordinances, contracts or other requirements.   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 106 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 58 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 58 of 65 

URP:  User Reclamation Plan. 
 
USE AREA:  The specific area designated to be served recycled water through on-site recycled 
water facilities. 
 
USER:  Any person, group, firm, partnership, corporation, association, or agency who legally 
receives recycled water service from the District; a Customer. 
 
VIOLATION:  Noncompliance with any condition or conditions of these Regulations and/or a user 
permit by any person, action or occurrence, whether willfully or by accident. 
 
WATER APPLICATION DEVICES:  Any mechanism or device that applies water at a 
predetermined rate onto a receiving area.  Devices include, but are not limited to, impact 
sprinklers, pop-up sprinklers, rotor sprinklers, drip emitters, mini-micro-sprayers, bubblers, 
spinners, portables. 
 
WATER DEPARTMENT:  The Board of Directors of the District performing functions related to 
the District's recycled water service, together with the General Manager and any other duly 
authorized representative. 
 
WATER CODE:  State of California Water Code. 
 
WINDBLOWN SPRAY:  Dispersed, airborne particles of water capable of being transmitted 
through the air to a location other than that for which the direct application of recycled water is 
approved. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 107 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 59 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 59 of 65 

 
 
 
 
 

Appendix B 
 
 

Mandatory Use Resolution No. 13-1998 
 
 
 

Please consult the latest version of this document 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 108 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 60 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 60 of 65 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 109 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 61 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 61 of 65 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 110 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 62 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 62 of 65 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 111 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 63 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 63 of 65 

 
 
 
 
 

Appendix C 
 
 

Rules and Regulations for Drinking Water Service 
Ordinance No. 48-1998, Section 10 

Cross Connection Control 
 
 
 

Please consult the latest version of this document 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 112 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 64 of 69 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 64 of 65 

 
 
 
 
 

Appendix D 
 
 

California Code of Regulations 
Backflow Prevention and Cross Connection Control Title 

17 
 
 
 

Please consult the latest version of this document 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 113 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-228  Page 65 of 69 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Ordinance No. XX-2018 Page 65 of 65 

 
 
 
 
 

Appendix E 
 
 

Application for Recycled Water Service  
 
 
 

Please consult the latest version of this document 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 114 of 145



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-229 

Date: September 25, 2018 

Prepared By: Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Review the Updated Procurement Policy for the Yucaipa Valley Water District 

 
During the most recent year-end financial audit, District staff became aware that our procurement 
policy was out of date and needed to be updated.  Attached is a revised version of the District’s 
current procurement policy that was adopted by the Board on June 20, 2007 [DM 07-070].  
 
The changes to the procurement policy include: 

• Definitions – “Formal Solicitation” (Page 1): clarified that all vendors should receive 
the same information regarding scope/specifications and all responses received 
must be kept in confidence until the bid is awarded.  

• Section 1.9 (Page 3): Added “expenses, lodging and meals” to the Travel line item. 

• Section 2.5 (Page 4): New language to clarify the first level of approval should 
ensure the quotes are in accordance with the procurement policy. 

• Authorization Table (Page 4): Updated titles across the top and changed the 
Manager limit from $10,000 maximum to $25,000 which is in line with how the 
District has been operating.  

• Section 3.1 Table (Page 5): Changed the lower limit to $4,999 maximum and 
updated language to state “Solicit two informal (phone/written) quotes whenever 
practical.”  

• Section 3.3: Clarified when it is appropriate to use a sole source vendor and how 
it should be documented.  

• Section 3.4: Added language to address the new Department of Industrial 
Relations (DIR) requirements the District currently follows.  

 
Financial Consideration 
 
There is no financial impact to the District by updating the procurement policy.   
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 115 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-229  Page 2 of 9 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 116 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-229  Page 3 of 9 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 117 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-229  Page 4 of 9 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 118 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-229  Page 5 of 9 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 119 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-229  Page 6 of 9 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 120 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-229  Page 7 of 9 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 121 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-229  Page 8 of 9 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 122 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-229  Page 9 of 9 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 123 of 145



 

Workshop Memorandum 18-230 

Date: September 25, 2018 

From: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Discussion Regarding the Draft 2018 Imported Water Rate Analysis for the San 
Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 

 
On January 16, 2018, the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency authorized David Taussig and 
Associates to proceed with the development of a water rate study for an amount of $40,000.   
 
On March 1, 2018, the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency conducted their initial Water Rate 
Workshop to provide information about the process and receive input from the public about issues 
related to adjustments in the imported water rate.   
 
On September 13, 2018, the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency presented the preliminary results of 
a water rate model developed by David Taussig & Associates.  The assumptions that are included 
in the model are provided on the following presentation slide from the meeting. 
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 124 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-230  Page 2 of 12 

On September 13, 2018, the Agency staff and Consultant provided the following preliminary 
scenarios that show how water rates are likely to change from the existing imported water rate of 
$309/acre foot.  The units for the table below are $ per acre foot. 
 

 
 
Details of the rate analysis for the “Constant Rate, 0% of Nickel Water on Capacity Fee” scenario 
are attached for your review and illustrated below. 
 

 

 -

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

 8,000

 10,000

 12,000

 14,000

 16,000

 18,000

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

$8,000,000

$9,000,000

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

SGPWA Preliminary Rate Scenario at $610 per Acre Foot

SGPWA Operations Overhead SGPWA Administrative Overhead East Branch Extension Operations

State Water Project Delivery Costs Yuba Dry Year Water Transfers Nickel Water Purchase

Water Quality Cost Actual - Projected Water Sales

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 125 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-230  Page 3 of 12 

Based on the data from this preliminary scenario, the most significant components in this proposed 
rate model in Calendar Year 2021 will be the State Water Project Delivery Costs (68%) and the 
Nickel Water Purchase (26%) making up 94% of the total imported water rate under this preliminary 
scenario. 
 

 
From the District’s staff perspective, the main points from the workshop on September 13, 2018 
include: 

• The San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency is interested in working with retail water customers 
and receiving input about the proposed rate at future meetings. 

• There is a consensus that there will be uncertainty about the quantity of imported water 
available each year from the State Water Project.  The amount of imported water available 
is beyond the control of the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency since it is determined by the 
Department of Water Resources. 

• The proposed imported water rate is likely to include the following components: 
o San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency Operational Overhead - 50% of annual operations 

cost of one employee 
o San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency Administrative Overhead - 5% of the annual 

administrative budget. 

State Water Project 
Delivery Costs

68%

Nickel Water Purchase
26%

Yuba Dry Year Water 
Transfers

2%

East Branch Extension 
Operations

2%

SGPWA Operations 
Overhead

1%

Water Quality Cost
1%

SGPWA Administrative 
Overhead

0%

SGPWA Preliminary Rate Scenario at $610/acre foot in 2021

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 126 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-230  Page 4 of 12 

o East Branch Extension Operational Costs - 50% of the annual overall expenses will 
be included in the imported water rate. 

o Department of Water Resources Energy and Transmission Costs - This is the largest 
component to the imported water rate and will likely include a projection of anticipated 
energy increases based on prior year data. 

o Yuba Dry Year Transfers - This cost component provides additional water supplies 
to the region. 

o Nickel Water Supplies - This cost component is the second most significant 
component and will be a factor in future rates for the remaining term of the contract 
(about 19 years). 

o Water Quality Cost - The cost for reducing algae in the State Water Project will likely 
be an ongoing expense. 

 
To actively contribute to the rate setting process, the District staff would like to receive the following 
information and make the following requests to prepare for a future workshop with the San Gorgonio 
Pass Water Agency. 
 

• The Yucaipa Valley Water District should request from the San Gorgonio Pass Water 
Agency, monthly invoices from the Department of Water Resources from January 2010 to 
current to evaluate the past trend of 12% annual increases in expenses from the Department 
of Water Resources. 
 

• The spreadsheet model prepared by David Taussig & Associates should be expanded to 
include actual data from 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, and 2016. 
 

• The spreadsheet model prepared by David Taussig & Associates should be expended to 
include projected revenue and expenses for 2022, 2023, 2024, and 2025. 
 

• The final rate spreadsheet should be made available to the retail water agencies so future 
expenses related to water supplies can be quickly analyzed to determine the impact on rates 
before agreements are executed. 
 

• The San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency should consider conducting an annual review of the 
imported water rate spreadsheet at a public workshop to determine the future trends of likely 
imported water rate changes.  
 

• The San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency should provide written memorandums and distribute 
data, tables, and concepts in advance of workshops and meetings to maximize the 
involvement by the board members and public. 

 
This item was discussed at the September 18, 2018, board meeting of the Yucaipa Valley Water 
District as Director Memorandum No. 18-133.  Following the staff presentation, the board members 
discussed the possibility of adding one board member to attend the future Manager Meetings1 hosted 
by the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency.  If the composition of attendees of the Manager Meetings 
are going to change, it might be better to retain the Manager Meetings, and instead create a separate 
group of ad hoc attendees to focus on a specific topic and to fully comply with the Brown Act. 
  

                                                
1 The next manager meeting will be held on September 25, 2018.  A copy of the proposed agenda is attached for your 
review. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 127 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-230  Page 5 of 12 

Excerpt from the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency Meeting Minutes - January 16, 2018 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 128 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-230  Page 6 of 12 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 129 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-230  Page 7 of 12 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 130 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-230  Page 8 of 12 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 131 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-230  Page 9 of 12 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 132 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-230  Page 10 of 12 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 133 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-230  Page 11 of 12 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 134 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 18-230  Page 12 of 12 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 135 of 145



 

 

Director Comments 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 136 of 145



 

 

Adjournment 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 137 of 145



January 2016 
 

 
 

FACTS ABOUT THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 

Service Area Size: 40 square miles (sphere of influence is 68 square miles) 
 
Elevation Change: 3,140 foot elevation change (from 2,044 to 5,184 feet) 
 
Number of Employees: 5 elected board members 

62 full time employees 
 
Operating Budget: Water Division - $13,397,500 
 Sewer Division - $11,820,000 
 Recycled Water Division - $537,250 
 Total Annual Budget - $25,754,750 
 
Number of Services: 12,434 water connections serving 17,179 units 

13,559 sewer connections serving 20,519 units 
64 recycled water connections 

 
Water System: 215 miles of drinking water pipelines 

27 reservoirs - 34 million gallons of storage capacity 
18 pressure zones 
12,000 ac-ft annual water demand (3.9 billion gallons) 
Two water filtration facilities: 

- 1 mgd at Oak Glen Surface Water Filtration Facility 
- 12 mgd at Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 

 
Sewer System: 8.0 million gallon treatment capacity - current flow at 4.0 mgd 

205 miles of sewer mainlines 
5 sewer lift stations 
4,500 ac-ft annual recycled water prod. (1.46 billion gallons) 

 
Recycled Water: 22 miles of recycled water pipelines 

5 reservoirs - 12 million gallons of storage 
1,200 ac-ft annual recycled demand (0.4 billion gallons) 

 
Brine Disposal:  2.2 million gallon desalination facility at sewer treatment plant 

1.108 million gallons of Inland Empire Brine Line capacity 
 0.295 million gallons of treatment capacity in Orange County  
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 138 of 145



January 2016 
 

State Water Contractors: San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
 San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
 

 
 

Sustainability Plan: A Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future: The Integration and 
Preservation of Resources, adopted on August 20, 2008. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 139 of 145



January 2016 
 

 
  

THE MEASUREMENT OF WATER PURITY 
 

One part per hundred is generally represented by the percent (%).  
This is equivalent to about fifteen minutes out of one day. 

 
One part per thousand denotes one part per 1000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about one and a half minutes out of one day. 
 
One part per million (ppm) denotes one part per 1,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about 32 seconds out of a year. 
 
One part per billion (ppb) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000 parts.   

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of a century. 
 
One part per trillion (ppt) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000 parts. 

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of every hundred thousand years. 
 
One part per quadrillion (ppq) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about two and a half minutes out of the age of the Earth (4.5 
billion years).  

 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 140 of 145



January 2016 
 

 
  

GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED TERMS 
 
Every profession has specialized terms which generally evolve to facilitate communication between individuals.  
The routine use of these terms tends to exclude those who are unfamiliar with the particular specialized language 
of the group.  Sometimes jargon can create communication cause difficulties where professionals in related fields 
use different terms for the same phenomena. 

Below are commonly used water terms and abbreviations with commonly used definitions.  If there is any 
discrepancy in definitions, the District's Regulations Governing Water Service is the final and binding definition.  

 

Acre Foot of Water - The volume of water (325,850 gallons, or 43,560 cubic feet) that would cover an area of 
one acre to a depth of 1 foot.  

Activated Sludge Process – A secondary biological sewer treatment process where bacteria reproduce at a 
high rate with the introduction of excess air or oxygen, and consume dissolved nutrients in the wastewater. 

Annual Water Quality Report - The document is prepared annually and provides information on water quality, 
constituents in the water, compliance with drinking water standards and educational material on tap water.  It is 
also referred to as a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR).  

Aquifer - The natural underground area with layers of porous, water-bearing materials (sand, gravel) capable of 
yielding a supply of water; see Groundwater basin.  

Backflow - The reversal of water's normal direction of flow.  When water passes through a water meter into a 
home or business it should not reverse flow back into the water mainline.  

Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Methods or techniques found to be the most effective and practical 
means in achieving an objective.  Often used in the context of water conservation.  

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) – The amount of oxygen used when organic matter undergoes 
decomposition by microorganisms.  Testing for BOD is done to assess the amount of organic matter in water. 

Biosolids – Biosolids are nutrient rich organic and highly treated solid materials produced by the sewer treatment 
process.  This high-quality product can be used as a soil amendment on farm land or further processed as an 
earth-like product for commercial and home gardens to improve and maintain fertile soil and stimulate plant 
growth. 

Catch Basin – A chamber usually built at the curb line of a street, which conveys surface water for discharge 
into a storm sewer. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) – Projects for repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of assets.  Also 
includes treatment improvements, additional capacity, and projects for the support facilities. 

Collector Sewer – The first element of a wastewater collection system used to collect and carry wastewater 
from one or more building sewer laterals to a main sewer. 

Coliform Bacteria – A group of bacteria found in the intestines of humans and other animals, but also 
occasionally found elsewhere and is generally used as an indicator of sewage pollution.   

Combined Sewer Overflow – The portion of flow from a combined sewer system, which discharges into a water 
body from an outfall located upstream of a wastewater treatment plant, usually during wet weather conditions. 

Combined Sewer System– Generally older sewer systems designed to convey both sewage and storm water 
into one pipe to a wastewater treatment plant. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 141 of 145



January 2016 
 

Conjunctive Use - The coordinated management of surface water and groundwater supplies to maximize the 
yield of the overall water resource.  Active conjunctive use uses artificial recharge, where surface water is 
intentionally percolated or injected into aquifers for later use.  Passive conjunctive use is to simply rely on surface 
water in wet years and use groundwater in dry years. 

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) - see Annual Water Quality Report.  

Cross-Connection - The actual or potential connection between a potable water supply and a non-potable 
source, where it is possible for a contaminant to enter the drinking water supply. 

Disinfection By-Products (DBPs) - The category of compounds formed when disinfectants in water systems 
react with natural organic matter present in the source water supplies.  Different disinfectants produce different 
types or amounts of disinfection byproducts. Disinfection byproducts for which regulations have been established 
have been identified in drinking water, including trihalomethanes, haloacetic acids, bromate, and chlorite 

Drought - a period of below average rainfall causing water supply shortages.  

Dry Weather Flow – Flow in a sanitary sewer during periods of dry weather in which the sanitary sewer is under 
minimum influence of inflow and infiltration. 

Fire Flow - The ability to have a sufficient quantity of water available to the distribution system to be delivered 
through fire hydrants or private fire sprinkler systems.  

Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) - A measurement of the average number of gallons of water use by the 
number of people served each day in a water system. The calculation is made by dividing the total gallons of 
water used each day by the total number of people using the water system.  

Groundwater Basin - An underground body of water or aquifer defined by physical boundaries.  

Groundwater Recharge - The process of placing water in an aquifer.  Can be a naturally occurring process or 
artificially enhanced.  

Hard Water - Water having a high concentration of minerals, typically calcium and magnesium ions.  

Hydrologic Cycle - The process of evaporation of water into the air and its return to earth in the form of 
precipitation (rain or snow).  This process also includes transpiration from plants, percolation into the ground, 
groundwater movement, and runoff into rivers, streams and the ocean; see Water cycle.  

Infiltration – Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and/or building laterals from the ground 
through defective pipes, pipe joints, connections, or manholes.  Infiltration does not include inflow.  See Inflow. 

Inflow - Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and building sewer from sources such as roof 
vents, yard drains, area drains, foundation drains, drains from springs and swampy areas, manhole covers, cross 
connections between storm drains and sanitary sewers, catch basins, cooling towers, storm waters, surface 
runoff, street wash waters, or drainage.  Inflow does not include infiltration.  See Infiltration. 

Inflow / Infiltration (I/I) – The total quantity of water from both inflow and infiltration. 

Mains, Distribution - A network of pipelines that delivers water (drinking water or recycled water) from 
transmission mains to residential and commercial properties, usually pipe diameters of 4" to 16".  

Mains, Transmission - A system of pipelines that deliver water (drinking water or recycled water) from a source 
of supply the distribution mains, usually pipe diameters of greater than 16".  

Meter - A device capable of measuring, in either gallons or cubic feet, a quantity of water delivered by the District 
to a service connection.  

Overdraft - The pumping of water from a groundwater basin or aquifer in excess of the supply flowing into the 
basin. This pumping results in a depletion of the groundwater in the basin which has a net effect of lowering the 
levels of water in the aquifer.  

Peak Flow – The maximum flow that occurs over a specific length of time (e.g., daily, hourly, instantaneously). 

Pipeline - Connected piping that carries water, oil or other liquids.  See Mains, Distribution and Mains, 
Transmission. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 142 of 145



January 2016 
 

Point of Responsibility, Metered Service - The connection point at the outlet side of a water meter where a 
landowner's responsibility for all conditions, maintenance, repairs, use and replacement of water service facilities 
begins, and the District's responsibility ends.  

Potable Water - Water that is used for human consumption and regulated by the California Department of Public 
Health.  

Pressure Reducing Valve - A device used to reduce the pressure in a domestic water system when the water 
pressure exceeds desirable levels.  

Pump Station - A drinking water or recycled water facility where pumps are used to push water up to a higher 
elevation or different location.  

Reservoir - A water storage facility where water is stored to be used at a later time for peak demands or 
emergencies such as fire suppression.  Drinking water and recycled water systems will typically use concrete or 
steel reservoirs.  The State Water Project system considers lakes, such as Shasta Lake and Folsom Lake to be 
water storage reservoirs. 

Runoff - Water that travels downward over the earth's surface due to the force of gravity.  It includes water 
running in streams as well as over land.  

Sanitary Sewer System - Sewer collection system designed to carry sewage, consisting of domestic, 
commercial, and industrial wastewater. This type of system is not designed nor intended to carry water from 
rainfall, snowmelt, or groundwater sources.  See Combined Sewer System. 

Sanitary Sewer Overflow – Overflow from a sanitary sewer system caused when total wastewater flow exceeds 
the capacity of the system.  See Combined Sewer Overflow. 

Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI) Line – A regional brine line designed to convey 30 million gallons per day 
of non-reclaimable wastewater from the upper Santa Ana River basin to the sewer treatment plant operated by 
Orange County Sanitation District. 

Secondary Treatment – Biological sewer treatment, particularly the activated-sludge process, where bacteria 
and other microorganisms consume dissolved nutrients in wastewater. 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) - A computerized system which provides the ability to 
remotely monitor and control water system facilities such as reservoirs, pumps and other elements of water 
delivery.  

Service Connection - The water piping system connecting a customer's system with a District water main 
beginning at the outlet side of the point of responsibility, including all plumbing and equipment located on a parcel 
required for the District's provision of water service to that parcel.  

Sludge – Untreated solid material created by the treatment of sewage. 

Smart Irrigation Controller - A device that automatically adjusts the time and frequency which water is applied 
to landscaping based on real-time weather such as rainfall, wind, temperature and humidity.  

Special District - A political subdivision of a state established to provide a public services, such as water supply 
or sanitation, within a specific geographic area.   

Surface Water - Water found in lakes, streams, rivers, oceans or reservoirs behind dams.  

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) – The amount of solids floating and in suspension in water or sewage. 

Transpiration - The process by which water vapor is released into the atmosphere by living plants.  

Trickling Filter – A biological secondary treatment process in which bacteria and other microorganisms, growing 
as slime on the surface of rocks or plastic media, consume nutrients in primary treated sewage as it trickles over 
them. 

Underground Service Alert (USA) - A free service that notifies utilities such as water, telephone, cable and 
sewer companies of pending excavations within the area (dial 8-1-1 at least 2 working days before you dig).  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 143 of 145



January 2016 
 

Urban Runoff - Water from city streets and domestic properties that typically carries pollutants into the storm 
drains, rivers, lakes, and oceans. 

Valve - A device that regulates, directs or controls the flow of water by opening, closing or partially obstructing 
various passageways.  

Wastewater – Any water that enters the sanitary sewer. 

Water Banking - The practice of actively storing or exchanging in-lieu surface water supplies in available 
groundwater basin storage space for later extraction and use by the storing party or for sale or exchange to a 
third party.  Water may be banked as an independent operation or as part of a conjunctive use program.  

Water cycle - The continuous movement water from the earth's surface to the atmosphere and back again; see 
Hydrologic cycle.  

Water Pressure - Pressure created by the weight and elevation of water and/or generated by pumps that deliver 
water to the tap.  

Water Service Line - The pipeline that delivers potable water to a residence or business from the District's water 
system.  Typically the water service line is a 1” to 1½” diameter pipe for residential properties.  

Watershed - A region or land area that contributes to the drainage or catchment area above a specific point on 
a stream or river.  

Water Table - The upper surface of the zone of saturation of groundwater in an unconfined aquifer.  

Water Transfer - A transaction, in which a holder of a water right or entitlement voluntarily sells/exchanges to a 
willing buyer the right to use all or a portion of the water under that water right or entitlement.  

Water Well - A hole drilled into the ground to tap an underground water aquifer.  

Wetlands - Lands which are fully saturated or under water at least part of the year, like seasonal vernal pools 
or swamps.  

Wet Weather Flow – Dry weather flow combined with stormwater introduced into a combined sewer system, 
and dry weather flow combined with infiltration/inflow into a separate sewer system. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 144 of 145



January 2016 
 

 
  

COMMONLY USED ABBREVIATIONS 
 

AQMD Air Quality Management District 

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

CARB California Air Resources Board 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television 

CWA Clean Water Act 

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

FOG Fats, Oils, and Grease 

GPD Gallons per day 

MGD Million gallons per day 

O & M Operations and Maintenance 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration  

POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

PPM Parts per million 

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board  

SARI Santa Ana River Inceptor 

SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 

SBVMWD San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system 

SSMP Sanitary Sewer Management Plan 

SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow 

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board  

TDS Total Dissolved Solids 

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load 

TSS Total Suspended Solids 

WDR Waste Discharge Requirements 

YVWD Yucaipa Valley Water District 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - September 25, 2018 - Page 145 of 145




